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1          BE IT REMEMBERED that the Open Meeting was held

2 at the Arizona Corporation Commission, in Hearing Room 1

3 of said Commission, 1200 West Washington Street,

4 Phoenix, Arizona, commencing at 10:09 a.m.

5

6

7 BEFORE:   KRISTIN K. MAYES, Chairman
          GARY PIERCE, Commissioner

8           PAUL NEWMAN, Commission
          SANDRA KENNEDY, Commissioner

9           BOB STUMP, Commissioner

10
IN ATTENDANCE FOR AGENDA ITEM NO. U-20:

11

12 For Arizona Corporation Commission:

13          MS. JANICE M. ALWARD
         MR. CHARLES H. HAINS

14

15 For UNS ELECTRIC, INC.:

16          MR. MATTHEW DERSTINE
         MR. JASON D. GELLMAN

17
         and

18
         UNISOURCE ENERGY SERVICE

19          MR. MARC JERDEN

20

21 For the Intervenor:

22          MS. ELIZABETH BUCHROEDER WEBB

23

24                        TERESE M. HEISIG
                       Certified Reporter

25                        Certificate No. 50378
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1          CHMN. MAYES:  It is the open meeting of the

2 Arizona Corporation Commission, and we are hearing, I

3 believe it is, Item 20 on the Open Meeting agenda, Case

4 144.  We had oral arguments on this case, I don't know,

5 a week ago, and we had quite a bit of public comment.

6 And I thought what we would do is call for any

7 additional public comment that there might be, and I had

8 a request from Ms. Webb to read a statement from for

9 Mr. Magruder.  We are going to accommodate that.

10          Is there any additional public comment?  And do

11 we -- do you have something additional to say,

12 Mr. Campana?  Come forward.  I know you have already

13 given public comment.

14          MR. CAMPANA:  I don't really have anything new

15 to add, other than the fact I would like to support -- I

16 hope you support Commissioner Pierce and Commissioner

17 Newman's Amendment 1 and 2 to the CEC, and I hope the

18 rest of the Commission members support that, as well.

19          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay, thank you.  State your name

20 for the record.

21          THE WITNESS:  Ron Campana.  I'm a resident of

22 Rio Rico, Santa Cruz County.

23          CHMN. MAYES:  Thank you for coming up.  Would

24 Mrs. Campana like to say something, as well?  And state

25 your name for the record.
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1          MS. CAMPANA:  Good morning Madam Commissioner

2 and Commissioners -- Madam Chair and Commissioners, I'm

3 sorry.

4          CHMN. MAYES:  Whatever you would like.

5          MS. CAMPANA:  Actually, I have two items.  We

6 did get an updated letter from the floodplain manager,

7 not the coordinator, that I will hand out to you, if you

8 don't mind.

9          In addition, when I almost fell off my chair at

10 the last hearing at the end of the day, I wanted to

11 clarify when Sherry Sass had said that the existing

12 alignment had already been clear-cut.  It has not.  Only

13 in Avatar's property.  When you hit Kiwi Court, from

14 there, the entire alignment to Canez has regrown, unless

15 the property owner has cleared it for pasture.  And I

16 have pictures of that.

17          In addition, I would like to say, I support the

18 amendments put forward by Commissioner Newman and

19 Commissioner Pierce, and I would hope the rest of the

20 Commissioners agree with that.  I think it is a win-win,

21 because it gets the lines out of private property and

22 allows the utility to only deal with one property owner

23 in a much safer environment.

24          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  And go ahead, if you want

25 to pass those out, that is fine.  We will include those
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1 in the docket as public comment and --

2          MS. CAMPANA:  Okay.  I just want to say that the

3 first photograph at the upper left is the tree that is

4 under -- within the current alignment.  It has a nine

5 foot circumference, and that is kind of a record for

6 mesquite.  And it is on my property, and I don't want it

7 damaged.

8          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  Thank you very much for

9 that public comment, and now we will go to Ms. Webb.

10          And, Elizabeth, you can sit there if you want or

11 stand, either one.

12          MS. WEBB:  Elizabeth Webb reading for Marshall

13 Magruder, whose mother was hospitalized who had to fly

14 out of town a few days ago, and he is going to try to

15 listen on the computer.

16          My name is Marshall Magruder.  I'm from Santa

17 Cruz County, Tubac, and I'm a community volunteer.  I

18 would like to ask for no changes in the amendments,

19 except for Commissioner Kennedy's, number one, citizens

20 action council or advisory, which I support.  However, I

21 recommend there be one CAC for UNS Electric as required

22 by the 1999 ACC order and a separate CAC for TEP.

23          Two, the e-mail I sent Marty at 12:47 on

24 September 21st contained my last thoughts on the six

25 poles 200-foot issue.  I would appreciate it if copies



UNS / Vail to Valencia 9/23/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 OM / Item U-20   

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
Arizona Reporting Service, Inc. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

7

1 of my response and Marty's e-mail on September 20th be

2 provided to the Commissioners.

3          I'm going to go ahead and read Marshall's

4 response, and if you would like me to read Marty's

5 e-mail, I will do that, as well.  Marty, at the hearing

6 last week, Ed Beck told me it would cost $1.4 million

7 more to put the line west of the Union Pacific Railroad

8 than east.  With poles costing between $10,000 and

9 $11,500 times six, equals $60,000 to $69,000.  There is

10 some $1.3 million missing from this equation.  I told

11 the Commission that $1.3 million, it changed a bit

12 later, was way too high.  Maybe $150,000 would be more

13 reasonable.

14          After the hearing, I asked Ed Beck, and he said

15 the -- this is -- sorry.  I asked Ed Beck if the $1.4

16 million was the total cost or just for the 1.3 mile, six

17 poles.  He said that was the difference for the six

18 poles to the west when compared to the east of the

19 railroad.  I don't believe this.  The only part of the

20 west side of the railroad that is okay is south of Kiwi

21 Court where there is a pole at Kiwi east of the

22 railroad.  Then the lines cross the railraod at an angle

23 15.5 degrees equals arc sine minus one, some sort of

24 squiggly thing, 0.26666 where 0. -- I will give this to

25 you when I'm done -- where 0.26666 equals 200 feet
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1 divided by 750 between the poles.  A large-term

2 structure is usually needed when the turn angle is

3 30 degrees or greater, and this is just about half of

4 that rule of thumb.  Meaning, he believes it is

5 15 degrees for the turn.  At the southern end, there

6 will be a turning structure for the east or west line to

7 go to Canez.  To cross the railroad, a clearance of

8 41 feet is required.  Normal clearance is 23 feet; thus,

9 four poles approximately, 41 minus 23 equals 17 feet

10 taller at each end.  The foundation should be the same

11 for both sides of the Union Pacific Railroad, except

12 that two, noted by the second Hayes letter, will be in

13 two to four feet of water; thus, the foundations need to

14 be at least four feet above ground.

15          And do you need to read the question -- do you

16 need to hear the question from one of the neighbors down

17 there?

18          COM. NEWMAN:  The what question?

19          CHMN. MAYES:  Hang on.  Were you reading?

20          MS. WEBB:  When I'm talking -- Elizabeth Webb is

21 talking.  There is also a letter from one of the

22 neighbors, and that was the question Mr. Magruder

23 answered.

24          CHMN. MAYES:  Probably not.

25          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  I will continue.
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1          CHMN. MAYES:  Are you going to provide this

2 information, Ms. Webb?

3          MS. WEBB:  Yes, but I only have one copy.  I can

4 make more copies afterwards.

5          CHMN. MAYES:  We can do that.

6          MS. WEBB:  I'm Mr. Magruder again.  Two very

7 important questions I would like the Commission to ask.

8 That is in bold.  Who has actually walked down the

9 1.3 miles, and what did they report when comparing east

10 versus west?  Two, could the Company break down their

11 $1.4 million in additional cost for these six poles?

12 Three, I support Newman proposed Amendment 1, move 200

13 feet and Pierce Amendment 2, move 200 feet, which can be

14 consolidated if necessary.  I might compromise with

15 shifting from east of the railroad to the existing

16 alignment north of Kiwi Court only to avoid the

17 potential washout area north of Kiwi, but that is about

18 all I would change.

19          I support Pierce Number 1, change 15 to 30 days

20 to respond, but I note that Commissioner Pierce did not

21 include, also notify all who live within 500 feet of the

22 final alignment.  The 30 days will give the newspapers

23 time to publish what the Company sends.  I am just

24 mentioning the 500 feet.  I do not wish to fight, in

25 quotes, for it.
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1          Number five, I support Newman Number 2,

2 additional notifications in the Vail area.

3          And that is it.

4          CHMN. MAYES:  Great.  Thank you, Ms. Webb, and

5 if you can make copies, that would be great or provide a

6 copy for the docket or both.

7          COM. NEWMAN:  Madam Chair.

8          CHMN. MAYES:  Commissioner Newman.

9          COM. NEWMAN:  I was very confused at the

10 beginning of the statement.  Either it was a

11 misstatement or not, but at first, the statement said, I

12 didn't support any amendments, and you went off --

13          CHMN. MAYES:  Commissioner, I think she said

14 Mr. Magruder didn't have any changes he wanted to offer.

15 Meaning, he is okay with Newman -- the Newman and Pierce

16 amendments on the --

17          MS. WEBB:  West of the railroad.

18          COM. NEWMAN:  I just wanted the record to

19 reflect he supported these amendments, but at first, the

20 preface was a little bit confusing even to me, and I'm

21 running the amendment.  So I think for the record, the

22 gesture that he is making that he is supporting the

23 western alignment, there is a little bit of confusion

24 when you read the preface.  I just wanted the record to

25 reflect that.
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1          MS. WEBB:  Thank you, Commissioner Newman.  I do

2 believe -- and Madam Chairman.  I do believe he is

3 supporting all of the amendments without any changes,

4 and I think that is where I made the confusion when I

5 spoke.  He just had a slight change to the Kennedy

6 Amendment Number 1.

7          COM. NEWMAN:  Thank you so much.

8          MS. WEBB:  Thank you.

9          CHMN. MAYES:  Would you read the proposed change

10 to the Kennedy amendment again?

11          Oh, I've got it.  Basically, Ms. Webb, it was my

12 understanding he wanted separate councils for TEP and

13 UniSource Electric?

14          MS. WEBB:  Correct.  I think what he was asking

15 was to reinstate the 1999 order for the UNS Electric.

16          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  When we get to it, we will

17 discuss it.  I'm not sure we can order something for TEP

18 when this case is regarding UniSource Electric.  We can

19 talk about that when we get to the amendment.

20          Okay.  Let's take up -- is there anything that

21 any party would like to add at this point?

22          No, so we will go -- Commissioner Newman.

23          COM. NEWMAN:  Yeah, just to Mr. Magruder's

24 points.  It is not going to go that long.  I was a

25 little late.  I was here, but I had to do something
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1 else, so I was a little late for some of the opening

2 statements.

3          I'm confused about the -- these projections of

4 cost, and it seems like Mr. Magruder is confused about

5 the cost, and he had direct questions for you in his

6 correspondence.  I'm sorry he couldn't be here.

7 Obviously, he had a family emergency.  So I just -- at

8 the last hearing, I sort of just extrapolated it is

9 around one-thirtieth of the cost even if it is around

10 $1 million.  The last cost was around $33 million, I

11 think, and that -- I'm sure that is a -- that might be a

12 little -- not perfect estimate.

13          So one-thirtieth of the cost is still

14 one-thirtieth of the cost.  Mr. Magruder does know a lot

15 about these things, and I guess I want to hear from my

16 engineering staff on this, too, while we are trying --

17 if they know anything, but just from you, I mean, it

18 does seem a little high, $1.4 million.  I want to make

19 sure that this alignment is secure, and I want to

20 micromanage that.  I want to make sure the alignment, if

21 it goes in where it goes in, is secure.  I'm not going

22 to argue about that, but what is the basis for the

23 $1.4 million?

24          MR. DERSTINE:  Madam Chair, Member Newman, good

25 morning Members of the Commission, as well as I will
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1 acknowledge, certainly, the presence of Siting Committee

2 Member Eberhart, as well.  Good morning to you all.

3 Matt Derstine and Jason Gellman on behalf of UniSource

4 Electric, along with senior counsel Marc Jerden.

5          On the cost issue, Member Newman, there was

6 testimony during the course of the siting hearing as to

7 what would have to be done to put this line west of the

8 railroad, as you are proposing and as Member Pierce is

9 proposing in our amendments.  The testimony from

10 Mr. Beck was essentially that in order to move this line

11 further out into the floodplain and in some areas within

12 feet of the flood channel, that the poles would have to

13 be direct drilled to a depth that would be below the

14 scour depth of the river at flood stage.  So this will

15 require drilling down approximately 45 to 50 feet based

16 on the estimates, and we haven't been out there to do

17 the detailed engineering that will be done and would

18 have to be done if you want to put the line there.

19          But what will be required is drilling down to

20 that depth below the scour depth of the river at that

21 point and then establishing a concrete foundation or

22 building a concrete foundation or case on to that depth

23 that then extends up the transmission pole structure.

24 And so the cost, the additional cost, is to do not only

25 that engineering but then to create that caisson, that
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1 foundation, at a depth of what the Company estimates to

2 be about 45 to 50 feet down below grade and then

3 building that foundation.  So -- and on top of that, I

4 know that now Mr. Magruder has, apparently, provided

5 additional testimony through the reading of Ms. Webb.

6 I'm happy if you are going -- if you want to take that

7 testimony, I would say that based on my conversations

8 with Mr. Beck, he is incorrect as to not only his

9 statements about the cost and what will need to be done

10 in order for this line and the structures to be built to

11 withstand the floodway and the floodplain in that area.

12 He is also incorrect about the turning structures.

13 There will indeed need to be turning structures, even at

14 the angles that are required to cross over the railroad.

15 So those are the additional costs.

16          The testimony was that from the foundation

17 standpoint, the additional cost would be $100,000 to

18 $150,000 per pole for that caisson and that drilling

19 work.  Now, that will then depend on the number of

20 poles, and, again, I think the Company is not persuaded

21 by Mr. Magruder's back of the napkin engineering of the

22 line and how it would be moved and anticipates that

23 there will indeed more structures than simply the six he

24 engineered into his proposal.

25          COM. NEWMAN:  I think he got the six from you.
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1          MR. DERSTINE:   No.  That is his own

2 engineering.

3          COM. NEWMAN:  Never came from you?

4          MR. DERSTINE:  No.

5          COM. NEWMAN:  Okay.  Well, I thought it did.  If

6 that is so, I'm fine, and I'm still running this

7 amendment.  And Mr. Pierce, I don't know what Pierce --

8 Mr. Pierce is going to do, but I think he is going to

9 run this amendment, because I think that the testimony

10 is pretty clear, at least at the open hearing, about

11 this issue.

12          And I guess a follow-up question.  In fact, I

13 talked about this with my staff.  I want to make -- like

14 I said in my initial remarks, I want to make sure it is

15 safe, absolutely safe, and so I actually went down to

16 near the Jewish Community Center in Tucson where there

17 is poles in the river down there, at the river walkway,

18 and I actually went to check it out.  And I imagined

19 that kind of facing that you are talking about, a

20 concrete facing, and I imagined, when you put those

21 poles in the Rillito, or when the utility company, I'm

22 not sure which utility company, put it in the Rillito,

23 but it is a similar situation as the poles in the

24 Rillito, and I would want that.  I would want to have

25 the security of sort of knowing that the poles were
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1 secure for generations.  And so am I right in thinking

2 that it is similar to the poles in the Rillito?

3          MR. DERSTINE:  I think you are correct in terms

4 of what you see there above ground --

5          COM. NEWMAN:  Yes.

6          MR. DERSTINE:  -- is what will have to be done

7 in order to build the structures west of the railroad

8 here in Santa Cruz County and, similarly, the concrete

9 caissons drilled down and constructed at a depth that

10 the -- based on engineering and analysis, the Company

11 projects will be needed to withstand future flooding.

12          COM. NEWMAN:  But that is right in the river bed

13 itself, right in the Rillito.  This is in the

14 floodplain.  It is a little bit different.  You are

15 being cautious, and I prefer to be cautious sitting up

16 here.  And I'm sure you down there, but maybe not, maybe

17 not as much, and I guess that is just an engineering

18 question that I can't answer.

19          MR. DERSTINE:  I don't think -- I think it has

20 been clear.  If it hasn't been, let me make it so today.

21 It has never been the position of the Company that this

22 can't be done, that the engineering analysis and the

23 construction techniques are not available to build

24 structures within a river, within a canyon, within a

25 floodway, within a floodplain.  It can be done.  And as
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1 we've talked about in their testimony in the record and

2 we've mentioned this morning, there is additional cost

3 to doing that, and so the decision has always been, and

4 the question has always been, do you want to do that?

5 Do you want to incur that additional cost?  And beyond

6 that, do you want to incur that additional cost

7 understanding that there is an additional risk to

8 reliability and that if there is a flood event, as has

9 occurred in Santa Cruz County in that river, whereas was

10 indicated in the letter from control district supervisor

11 Mr. Hayes, that the river has had a history of moving

12 500 feet in a single event and has had a history of

13 taking out the railroad bed in locations in the vicinity

14 of where we are proposing to build this line.  So there

15 is a -- not only a cost, but a reliability risk

16 associated with that decision, and understand that if

17 there is the kind of event that could endanger those

18 structures, could take down a structure or could put the

19 line in jeopardy, if there is an outage as a result of

20 that, that outage will continue for some period of time,

21 because in that sort of a flood event, we are not going

22 to have access to that line.  And so while we may be

23 able to restore power by pushing power up from Valencia

24 using the turbines in Valencia and push power down, say,

25 from Kantor, that at the point of the outage, if there



UNS / Vail to Valencia 9/23/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 OM / Item U-20   

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
Arizona Reporting Service, Inc. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

18

1 is the type of flood event that is going to take down a

2 structure or take down the line, we are not going to be

3 able to get to that line for an extended period of time,

4 as was the history with the loss of the poles in the

5 Rillito river, which you went out and looked at.

6          There are structures built within the Rillito.

7 They were placed there at a time when that was kind of

8 and oftentimes an easy choice because you weren't having

9 to put structures on private property.  You could put it

10 within the river, and everyone was happy with that.  But

11 what we found from -- the Company has found from those

12 decisions, you have a risk.  You have a reliability

13 risk, and while many of the structures remained standing

14 in the big floods in '83 that occurred in Tucson, the

15 Company lost structures, and there were outages then for

16 an extended period of time.  So I think you need to

17 recognize, in making this choice, that that may very

18 well be what occurs here.

19          And my point is only that there is some irony,

20 some amount of irony in the fact that this project is

21 being built to address reliability problems in Santa

22 Cruz County.  It is being built to address reliability

23 concerns and the history of the reliability concerns,

24 and now we are looking at putting the line at a point

25 where it is at the greatest risk of loss by pushing it
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1 further out into the floodplain, closer to the channel

2 of the Santa Cruz River, and you are putting it at a

3 point where if there is a loss, we may have an extended

4 outage.

5          COM. NEWMAN:  And just my final comment, yet it

6 is a cost benefit analysis, like I said the last time

7 that we met.  We have a new letter that was received --

8 received by all the Commissioners, I believe, that from

9 the chairman of the board of supervisors in Santa Cruz

10 County recognizing the riparian elements of this choice

11 and protecting wildlife corridors in this case, or

12 birds, many different species, so that is a tough one.

13 But the community was more or less emphatic about it,

14 and I realized that is why I wanted to have this

15 conversation with you.  I realize it is ironic to you;

16 however, this is a community choice to protect the

17 environment, and the people in Santa Cruz County are

18 very, very, very strong in their respect for protecting

19 the environment.  So there is irony to an engineer;

20 however, respect for the citizens of the community is

21 something that we have to look at, as well, and we have

22 requiremental considerations that weren't truly -- well,

23 were brought forth to us at a very important time in

24 this decision, so -- but I wanted to make sure you knew

25 that I wanted to make sure that this cost battle, how
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1 much it is going to cost, what was most important to me

2 is that you build it strong like you've built, I

3 believe, these poles that are sitting near the Jewish

4 Community Center and other places as it traverses

5 Rillito.  I think people in the community deserve that.

6          I'm very happy this line is going through.  I'm

7 going to be voting "yes" on this today.  This is a

8 tremendous resource for Santa Cruz County.  They have

9 been waiting for decades, and I'm very glad your company

10 is willing to make this investment.  This is just a

11 minor dispute in that ultimate goal that we are all here

12 together to make sure there is reliable electricity for

13 Santa Cruz County and Pima County.

14          MR. DERSTINE:  Madam Chair, if I can touch

15 briefly on the environmental issue.  I recognize there

16 was testimony before the Siting Committee, there was

17 public comment, and the Company has been sensitive to

18 this area, the bosque area, as having probably the most

19 unique environmental concerns and issues with this

20 entire project, and so it is appropriate that it

21 received this amount of focus and attention, but what I

22 want to make clear, and I think is clear from the record

23 before this Siting Committee, but I want to make sure

24 there is no misunderstanding before the Commission today

25 is that the area that we are talking about, this
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1 1.2 mile area where you are looking at and considering

2 flipping the line over the railroad to remove the

3 transmission line from private land owned by the

4 residents between Kiwi Court and the Canez substation is

5 just that.  This is private land.  It is broken into

6 lots.  It has what you would find on private land where

7 people live.  It has houses.  It has garages.  It has

8 barns.  It has horse pasture land.  It has swimming

9 pools.  It has all sorts of structures.  This is not a

10 wildlife preserve.  This is not an area that has been

11 set aside for birding.  It is a habitat for important

12 species in the area.  We recognize that, but there

13 should not be any confusion, and if you would like, we

14 can pull up a Google map that clearly shows the land use

15 in that area.  You have lots.  You have homes.  You have

16 barns.  You have corals.  You have area where the

17 landowners have cleared the mesquite bosque, the trees

18 that grow in this area, and they have every right to do

19 that, and no one will prevent them from doing that.

20 They've cleared areas for horse corals, horse pasture,

21 and so these are private landowners who bought and live

22 there with a line that has been there for 40, 50 years,

23 and now they want to move the line off their property

24 and over the railroad to another landowner.

25          I understand that desire.  I understand that



UNS / Vail to Valencia 9/23/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 OM / Item U-20   

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
Arizona Reporting Service, Inc. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

22

1 sentiment.  The choice, is that appropriate?  And, you

2 know, if I lived in that area, I would be happy if the

3 Commission would order and have all the UNS Electric

4 ratepayers pay the cost of moving this line off my

5 property and over the railroad to another adjoining

6 landowner.  I would be happy with that and I would push

7 for that, as well.  But I think your decision and your

8 choice is, is that appropriate?  Should that be done in

9 light of the cost, the reliability risk, and the concern

10 over an extended outage if the river does what it has

11 done in the past?  Thank you.

12          COM. NEWMAN:  I didn't intend it to go that

13 long, but I'm glad I asked the questions, and I'm glad

14 they responded.

15          CHMN. MAYES:  Thank you.  Mr. Pierce.

16          COM. PIERCE:  I want to address the reliability

17 risk for a moment, because it is almost one side you

18 would say that, you know, there is this great risk.  On

19 the other side, you say but we have engineers that can

20 build this.  We have no problem doing that.  And I think

21 the second part is the miracular one.  We had a lot of

22 flooding over -- the Salt River flooded out a lot of

23 bridges here in the valley in the '70s, '60s, so on.

24 But it finally got taken care of when enough money was

25 devoted to put structures that could withstand the flows
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1 that were there.  We had flooding in Mesa over

2 McKellips, which -- well, over Country Club.  Finally

3 put bridges in at Alma School.  Probably put a bridge in

4 at Country Club that wouldn't wash out.  That is just

5 engineering.

6          When I had the 1.4 figure, I thought, well, that

7 is a little steep, but if you have a lot of steel and

8 concrete and drilling, and that is going to occur.  But

9 we make an accommodations and try to have the least

10 amount of impact on people as possible and recognizing

11 that the benefit goes out to all the people, and should

12 it be borne by just a group or partially to that?  And I

13 think you weigh out those externalities.  I think that

14 is why we can rehash really the discussion we had last

15 week that got me to the point where I offered this

16 amendment, but it is not going to change, and so I just

17 depend on the utility to make sure that it is -- you are

18 not building a bridge.  But you are probably building

19 something you want to stay there like a bridge, and we

20 have plenty of bridges that withstand this and are not

21 going anywhere, especially since they are not sustaining

22 water all the time.

23          It just seems to me that we can talk about risk,

24 but there is risk no matter where you put it.  It is

25 just, say, well, what is the difference in that risk?
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1 And engineering, today's engineering particularly, can

2 handle that.  Perhaps the engineering that was washed

3 out in 1983 wasn't as good, and maybe there was some

4 liability there.  But all I'm saying is we have a pretty

5 good idea of, I think -- I have an idea why I want to do

6 this, and it is to lessen the impact, the direct impact

7 on those around and make sure we have a line that will

8 last through the ages, will not have interrupted

9 service, and I don't believe the Company is going to

10 have their engineers put something there that will not

11 last through the ages.  I don't believe that, and I

12 don't want you to even kind of insinuate, well, you

13 know, sure, there is risk, and there is always risk.  I

14 understand that.  Let's not make any more than there is.

15 Thank you.

16          CHMN. MAYES:  Mr. Eberhart, thank you, again,

17 for being here, and I don't mean to put you on the spot.

18 If you are brave enough to stand and take our questions.

19 You are an engineer, also, I will note, and I was just

20 curious why the -- if you can tell us why the Committee,

21 or at least why you voted to, I guess, reject the

22 western route or not put the line in the floodplain.  I

23 say that I'm quite -- I'm a little undecided about this

24 at this point, and I'm not sure how I'm going to vote on

25 these amendments, but I do want to hear a little bit
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1 more about the Committee's thinking on it.

2          MEMBER EBERHART:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

3 Actually, as an anecdote, one of the first jobs when I

4 went to work for the Department of Transportation in

5 1984 was to redesign a bridge over the Santa Cruz River

6 leading into the Sanghavi Mission down south of Tucson.

7 So I am experienced in flood problems in Santa Cruz

8 County.

9          A couple thoughts went through my mind

10 specifically.  Number one is, and I'm not an attorney,

11 but the alignment west of the railroad was not an

12 alignment that was included in the study that was

13 presented to us, so there had been no environmental

14 studies of that alignment to my knowledge.  So in my

15 mind, there is a gray area, and whether or not the

16 committee can -- even if we wanted to, could select that

17 as an alternative, because it was not presented to us as

18 an alternative, and it was not studied in detail like

19 the other alternatives were.  So there is a legal

20 question in my mind whether or not the committee could

21 have selected that even if we wanted to.

22          On the surface of the going to the west, it

23 seems like it is a good idea.  It is a logical

24 commonsense idea, but once -- just like in legislation

25 when you pass the legislation.  The devil is in the
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1 details, and once the committee -- in fact, this case,

2 initially, we thought was going to be a one- or two-day

3 case, and it ended up being five days, or something like

4 that, with four of those days being on this 1.6-mile

5 portion.

6          So we studied it in detail, even though it

7 wasn't presented as an alternative, over a significant

8 amount of time.  Most of the committee members went on a

9 field trip throughout the alignments there in Santa Cruz

10 County, got off the bus, walked through that area.  So

11 once we started understanding the issues out there, I

12 think it was pretty unanimous that while on the surface

13 of it, it looked like a good idea, really, the best

14 solution was to go with the preferred alignment.

15          The homeowners in that area already have two

16 power lines going through their properties, one on the

17 west and one on the east.  And the view shed is to the

18 west primarily where the aesthetic area is, so we felt

19 by -- well, I can't speak for the other committee

20 members, but my thought process was that the preferred

21 alignment would get rid of the power line eventually in

22 the front yard, move it to the back where there already

23 was a power line, and that would kind of take care of

24 the problem.

25          We also had testimony, I believe, from the flood



UNS / Vail to Valencia 9/23/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 OM / Item U-20   

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
Arizona Reporting Service, Inc. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

27

1 control district that I don't remember the specific

2 letter, the details, but in effect, there was no way

3 they were going to allow it to the west, because of it

4 would encroach into the floodway.  Now, I don't know if

5 they've changed their position since then, but it didn't

6 seem -- with all of those factors, the fact that it had

7 not been studied environmentally to the west, that it

8 would be in the floodway of the river, not in the

9 floodplain, and the additional cost, and the gray area

10 of the legality of the committee, all of those factors

11 combined for us to go with the preferred alignment.

12          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  Thank you very much.  That

13 was revealing.

14          Okay.  We have amendments.  I know Ms. Webb

15 wants to talk.  We've already done oral arguments.  Can

16 it wait until we start taking out the Newman and Pierce

17 amendments, or is there something quickly you wanted to

18 say?

19          MS. WEBB:  It is just relating to things --

20 whenever is the best time to talk, because I just don't

21 know.

22          CHMN. MAYES:  Go ahead.

23          MS. WEBB:  Really quickly, and I'm speaking for

24 myself, not Mr. Magruder when I testify.  Mr. Beck did

25 testify that the areas in-between would be able to be
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1 sustained by the substations as Mr. Derstine just

2 corroborated.  Commissioner Newman, there are also poles

3 in the Pantano River and the Santa Cruz River.  Mr. Beck

4 testified that when the structures were lost in the 1983

5 flood, the steel lattice structures were replaced in the

6 same location with monopoles, so they were returned.

7          I have a question about the cost to condemn,

8 because it is obvious that this area is contentious, and

9 I'm not sure what that cost would be, because there are

10 some landowners on either side of that that are very

11 strong.  Everyone has good reasons.  In Line Site Case

12 138, Member Palmer said, developed land with residents

13 are taken into consideration first, and then platted

14 land is second, and then undeveloped unplatted land is

15 considered third, and the land west of the railroad is

16 unplatted, undeveloped.

17          Santa Cruz County has stringent environmental

18 rules, and I agree with what Member Eberhart said, a lot

19 of this was based on legal issues with the notice area

20 and the distance as well as some engineering concerns

21 and not having it studied, so -- and the field trip,

22 which was great, we learned a lot, but we didn't

23 specifically walk on the west side of the railroad.  I

24 mean, like, we didn't go over the tracks to that side to

25 see some of the things they talked about.
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1          CHMN. MAYES:  Thank you very much.  All right.

2 So I would propose that we take up the Pierce and Newman

3 Amendments.  Why don't we just take out the Pierce

4 Amendment and call it the Pierce/Newman, unless -- I

5 mean, you guys can hash it out yourselves but

6 Commissioner Pierce.

7          COM. NEWMAN:  Madam Chair --

8          COM. PIERCE:  I move Item 120.

9          CHMN. MAYES:  Hang on, hang on.  So Commissioner

10 Newman has deferred to Commissioner Pierce.

11          COM. NEWMAN:  Yeah, I defer to my senior

12 commissioner.

13          CHMN. MAYES:  So we have Commissioner Pierce.

14 Do you want to offer your amendment?

15          COM. PIERCE:  Yes.  I move Pierce Proposed

16 Amendment Number 2.  It is simply, if you notice the

17 note to parties, which is also in Commissioner Newman's.

18 During the Open Meeting, please be prepared to address

19 whether this proposed amendment accurately describes the

20 western route proposed by Intervener Marshall Magruder

21 in his brief filed in support of his request for review.

22 And I guess, Ms. Webb, based on what he said, he

23 supports both, but I was coming here, well, which one

24 would he like to see, or is there a hybrid of them that

25 we need to take, which would mean I would simply amend
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1 mine to include Commissioner Newman's language.  Or we

2 could just do Commissioner Newman's, as well, and Legal

3 can sort through that.

4          COM. NEWMAN:  We might have.

5          COM. PIERCE:  So legal.

6          CHMN. MAYES:  We need to have one person at a

7 time speaking.

8          COM. PIERCE:  Well, on the --

9          CHMN. MAYES:  Is that to Ms. Webb or to

10 Mr. Palmer?

11          COM. PIERCE:  I think this is the legal part to

12 Ms. Alward, because I think we understand Mr. Magruder

13 supports both of them, and so from a legal standpoint,

14 how do we meld them?

15          MR. HAINS:  Madam Chair, Commissioner Pierce.

16 Charles Hains from the Legal Division.  One, I would

17 point out, there is the issue raised by Member Eberhart

18 when he discussed a gray area about a noticed portion.

19 One question about how the amendment was raised by

20 Mr. Magruder within his brief is it is not clear about

21 where it transitions back to the east.  There is a --

22 the way the CEC is written, the path of the alignment

23 tracks and skirts the outside of the Union Pacific's

24 right-of-way.  The difficulty is that the right-of-way

25 of if Union Pacific expands when it transitions from one
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1 segment into another, and without -- it is in the

2 transition into the other segment, Segment 3, I believe

3 it would take it outside of the noticed area if it does

4 not explicitly come back over onto the east side before

5 then.  But the amendment that has been offered right now

6 does keep it within the noticed area.

7          COM. NEWMAN:  Which amendment?

8          MR. HAINS:  Pierce Number 2.

9          COM. NEWMAN:  How about Newman?

10          MR. HAINS:  It could be changed to bring it in.

11 It is not explicit to say whether it does or not at this

12 point.  That is because of the way the CEC is written.

13          COM. PIERCE:  Okay.

14          MS. ALWARD:  I would ask the Company, from a

15 technical point of view, whether this amendment

16 accomplishes what I think you've made clear to them,

17 because they are going to be in the best position to

18 know from the technical description whether this

19 comports with what Mr. Magruder had proposed and

20 whether -- and what you have indicated to them you are

21 interested in supporting.

22          COM. PIERCE:  My trusted legal counsel sitting

23 behind me also asked me to ask the Company if that --

24          MR. DERSTINE:  Madam Chair, Member Pierce, we've

25 looked over Pierce Proposed Amendment Number 2.  In
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1 amending the CEC to push the line west of the railroad,

2 I think the only -- well, I think, point one, it

3 generally does -- your amendment does generally track

4 Mr. Magruder's suggestion in his brief.  The change we

5 would ask that you make is in that first sentence,

6 towards the end of the first sentence where it says,

7 crosses over the UPR or track to a point 50 feet.  We

8 ask you to change that to 25 feet.  The 50 feet puts us

9 right at the edge of the corridor that is described in

10 the application in the CEC.  So by changing that to

11 25 feet, it gives us then the room to be well within the

12 corridor that was described and then to engineer and

13 properly place the poles.

14          COM. PIERCE:  Okay.  Madam Chair, I move my

15 amendment.  I move Pierce Proposed Amendment Number 2.

16 I will move that verbal to -- moving 50 feet in the

17 third line.  We will replace it with the following.  The

18 third line, move to change the 50 feet to 25 feet.  So

19 that is a verbal, and I will move the amendment.

20          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  Well, Commissioner Newman?

21          COM. NEWMAN:  Madam Chairman, I actually -- and

22 I want to make sure I'm right about this, so I have to

23 make sure Legal and everyone is listening, but I am

24 going to withdraw my amendment, because I actually think

25 Mr. Pierce's amendment more accurately describes what we
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1 want and to make sure there is notice that counsel

2 brought up, because my amendment is not clear about the

3 notice, and so that would be the reason to withdraw.  I

4 think that is true, and -- but I just want to make it

5 quick, but I support this amendment.  I think it is

6 clearer than my amendment.  My amendment was written, I

7 think, the day after the hearing.  I just want to make

8 sure it got on the record.  So as long as -- so I

9 support -- I withdraw my amendment, and I support the

10 Pierce amendment.

11          CHMN. MAYES:  Is the Pierce verbal amendment to

12 both 50 feet listed in the -- or just the first 50 feet?

13          MR. DERSTINE:  Madam Chair, just to the first 50

14 feet.  But as I was caucusing with the smart folks

15 behind me, they suggested one other verbal change to

16 Proposed Amendment Number 2, or addition, rather, that

17 then in the fourth line where it says, the UPRR

18 right-of-way to the Canez substation, we ask we insert

19 to a point west of the Canez substation.  So only those

20 changes.  The first call out to 50 feet be changed to

21 25 feet, and then in the fourth line, it should read,

22 resumes paralleling the UPRR right-of-way to insert a

23 point west of the Canez Substation.

24          CHMN. MAYES:  And the reason for that is?

25          MR. DERSTINE:  I guess, to make clear from the
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1 survey and engineering standpoint that the line moves

2 over the railroad, west parallels the railroad to a

3 point west of the Canez substation and then travels back

4 over the railroad to the east to interconnect at Canez.

5          COM. PIERCE:  You want the specific language, so

6 if you --

7          MR. DERSTINE:  We want to build it exactly the

8 way you want us to build it.

9          COM. PIERCE:  Madam Chair, let me withdraw my

10 verbal amendment and change to this verbal amendment

11 that we -- that we change 50 feet to 25 feet on the

12 third line, and in the middle of the fourth line -- I

13 will read the fourth line.  Resumes paralleling the UPRR

14 right-of-way to a point west of the Canez substation.

15 That is my verbal amendment.

16          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  So we have those verbal

17 amendments.  All those in favor say aye.

18          COM. STUMP:  Aye.

19          COM. PIERCE:  Aye.

20          COM. NEWMAN:  Aye.

21          CHMN. MAYES:  Aye.

22          All those opposed?

23          MS. KENNEDY:  No.

24          COM. PIERCE:  Madam Chair, I propose to move

25 Pierce Amendment Number 2 as amended.
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1          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  Pierce as amended has been

2 moved.  Are there any other comments from the parties?

3          Ms. Webb.

4          MS. WEBB:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  I believe

5 the reason maybe for the point west of the Canez

6 substation, there is a gap between the preferred

7 alignment and the substation that wasn't in the

8 preferred alignment, but that is fine with me if it

9 works out so they can get to the substation.  Anyhow,

10 that was just to clarify why it might be.  That is just

11 my perception.

12          CHMN. MAYES:  All right.  You know, I have to

13 say, just for the record, I'm a little bit nervous about

14 the changes that have just been made.  Frankly, I'm a

15 little unclear about exactly what this amendment does.

16 I'm having a real hard time with this, Colleagues, so

17 maybe we can talk about it a little more.  After hearing

18 Mr. Eberhart, they spent four days on the ground.  They

19 walked the line.  They saw it.  We haven't seen it.  The

20 western route, this route wasn't noticed.  I'm not sure

21 what -- you know, what people are going to be impacted

22 by this amendment that are going to be angry because

23 this wasn't noticed.  I mean, do we have any idea what

24 people -- I don't even think we know what people are

25 going to be impacted by this, and they didn't -- my
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1 guess is they didn't have an opportunity to participate

2 in the case if they weren't noticed.

3          But Ms. Alward, can you allay my concerns?  I

4 mean, I have other concerns, including the costs

5 associated with it that would impact one of the poorest

6 counties in the state, but that is a separate issue, in

7 addition to my worries about the floodplain.

8          MR. ALWARD:  Chairman, Commissioners, I can

9 speak to the notice issue.  If this was not noticed, it

10 would not be appropriate for you to consider it as a

11 Commission, because then the public didn't have notice.

12 It is my understanding that as amended, this description

13 of the alignment was actually part of the notice, and I

14 want the Company to confirm that, because I think the

15 problem was that Mr. Magruder's proposal was too vague

16 to come to a viewpoint on that, but as to this proposal,

17 as to notice, it is my understanding this was included

18 in the notice provided by the Company, and they can

19 confirm that.

20          MR. DERSTINE:  Madam Chair, yes, this -- the

21 Pierce Amendment Number 2 does fall within the 500 foot

22 corridor that was noticed and was part of the

23 application.  Part of the discussion that Member

24 Eberhart referred to was that one of the suggestions

25 that was taken up and considered by the Siting Committee
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1 over those days was not only having the line moved west

2 of the railroad here from Kiwi Court down to Canez, but

3 then to continue west of the railroad further south in a

4 much longer transition to the west.  It was clear that

5 in that area that to do that would be outside the

6 corridor, run afoul of notice issues with the Siting

7 Committee and the application.  But as to this area and

8 as it is described in the Pierce Amendment Number 2,

9 this still does fall, as it is set forth subject to the

10 verbal modifications to the Pierce Amendment Number 2,

11 it does still fall within the corridor that was

12 described and noticed out.

13          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.

14          COM. NEWMAN:  Madam Chair.

15          CHMN. MAYES:  Commissioner Newman.

16          COM. NEWMAN:  I was not there, but I wanted

17 to -- that is a puppet.  Excuse me.  I want to talk

18 about the cost benefit a little bit more.  I'm not sure

19 I'm going to be able to sway, but -- or I'm talking

20 to -- speaking to all my colleagues actually, not just

21 you.  But, you know, David is a respected friend of

22 mine.  We served in the legislature.  I respect him a

23 lot, and his explanation was very to the point, as it

24 usually is.  And I didn't ask him any questions after,

25 because I thought he was -- he is all of our witnesses,
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1 but I didn't want to go into a dialogue with him about

2 it.  But instead of asking him questions about it, I

3 will give you my point of view about it, at least from

4 what I've gleaned.

5          When the floodplain -- I don't know exactly, I

6 wasn't there, but when the Santa Cruz floodplain

7 director sent that letter that we saw and that must have

8 been what -- a very, very important document to the

9 Committee, and we've since had a little bit different

10 takes on that letter.  First of all, there was another

11 letter in the file that was -- could be interpreted -- I

12 know, we can debate this all night, but could be

13 interpreted as not being as defiant in saying no.  Just

14 generally -- I'm not going to go to exact words; I don't

15 have it in front of me, but, you know, generally I think

16 my colleagues generally know what I'm referring to, and

17 so, you know, that is the letter that I was going off

18 of.  So let's define it.

19          To be honest with you, and this is why I pointed

20 out in the beginning of the argument that I was sort of

21 unclear what Santa Cruz County's position was, and I

22 don't think it is incumbent on me to call out and find

23 out what the true scoop is.  I didn't do that, and to my

24 surprise, there was a letter from the chair of the board

25 of Santa Cruz County, and to me, that, you know, was
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1 also very important and came after our discussions.

2 They came after I prepared my amendment, which was

3 not -- that I just withdrew.  So I -- you know, this is

4 an engineering sort of question, and that is one of the

5 reasons why my Holy days last week I actually went down

6 to the river to check out what they can do to put poles

7 in the river, and God gave me the permission to do that,

8 even though I was supposed to be praying.  I was doing

9 something on behalf of society.  It made me realize it

10 can be done.

11          On the cost benefit issue of Mr. Magruder saying

12 you can do it cheaper, I don't often want to go there.

13 I want to make that clear from where we are sitting, we

14 had to make sure it is reliable just like the Company's

15 concerns and to try to rectify this very bad situation

16 of uneven electricity in Santa Cruz County for several

17 decades that has caused economic development problems as

18 well as real life -- pursuit of happiness problems for

19 people in Santa Cruz County, as well.

20          So anyway, I thought about it a lot again, you

21 know, not -- and tried to separate myself from the

22 emotion of the day that we had a couple weeks ago.  So

23 that is one of the reasons why I asked the Company today

24 about what they are going to do to make -- so I can go

25 home and sleep at night and not worry about 100-year



UNS / Vail to Valencia 9/23/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 OM / Item U-20   

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
Arizona Reporting Service, Inc. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

40

1 flood taking out these lines and somebody Monday morn

2 quarterbacking the Commission and saying, Why did you do

3 that, which I think is what is at the crux of our

4 decision.

5          So I feel confident knowing that there is

6 incredible engineering in this day and age to make

7 things stable.  I just was listening to NPR about -- I

8 don't agree with a lot of the statements about the state

9 of the art of natural gas drilling in shale and how they

10 can do just about anything on this planet now, but I'm

11 getting to know the engineering question about I believe

12 the Company can put these lines in stably.  There is no

13 doubt that there is in those bosques some species --

14 hawks was testified to.  I'm not sure about endangered

15 species.  Like David said, there haven't been a real

16 check of this area, but from the testimony of the people

17 that came before that Dave didn't hear, there is

18 wildlife there.  People that live on the river are very,

19 very sensitive to wildlife, and I am too, and I know you

20 are.

21          So I'm going to stop talking now, but I just

22 wanted to tell you what was truly in my head.  It was

23 not just a knee jerk reaction from that one day.  It was

24 sort of a reason.

25          CHMN. MAYES:  And I appreciate that.
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1          Commissioner Pierce.

2          COM. PIERCE:  Yes.  You know, I can just imagine

3 how Mr. Eberhart feels with -- you know, if he has read

4 the most recent letter, the September 22nd letter, from

5 the Flood Control District, because, you know, in that

6 letter, it talks about the previous correspondence,

7 perhaps being misconstrued.  It talks about A.R.S.

8 48-3601, which exempts UniSource from floodplain use

9 permits process, which you probably knew anyway, but --

10 and then they say we recognize and it is commonplace for

11 transmission lines to be within major water courses as

12 exists within Pima County to the north and that there

13 hasn't been any compromising by the recent flood of 2006

14 in the Rillito River, which I thought basically says,

15 okay, you know, his job is to try to keep things out of

16 the floodplain.

17          That is his job, but he then comes to reality

18 with the letter, the most recent letter, and I think

19 that that is the -- that is, what you have to deal with

20 really is, you know, you go through all these days,

21 okay, it would have been nice to have that.  I'm sure it

22 would have; right, Dave?

23          MEMBER EBERHART:  Yes.

24          COM. PIERCE:  And that is where I'm at is, I

25 recognize that reality.  I think Commissioner Newman,
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1 too, we both have been on boards of supervisors dealing

2 with flood districts and what they can and can't do, and

3 we find out that we didn't have control over as

4 directors of the Flood Control District, and so I

5 recognize that pretty much in the testimony last week

6 what we were dealing with.  I suspect you did, too.

7 That is why we both offered these amendments.

8          CHMN. MAYES:  Commissioner Stump.

9          COM. STUMP:  Thanks, Madam Chair.  Mr. Eberhart,

10 you mentioned no environment studies of this alignment

11 had occurred.  Was that a prime factor in giving you

12 pause to choosing this alignment in the first place?

13          MEMBER EBERHART:  Mr. Stump, yes, and I can

14 speak for my own thought process was that we are -- as a

15 committee, we are presented with a preferred alignment

16 and then two or three alternatives that have each been

17 studied, and the merits and disadvantages of each of

18 those alternatives are laid out in our notebooks and

19 presentation documents that the Committee has shown.  At

20 no time was anything prepared in advance for any

21 alignment west of the railroad.  So as I said, there

22 was, in my mind, a legal issue whether or not we really

23 had studied that whole area there effectively and in

24 accordance with statutes that would allow us to adopt an

25 alternative that hadn't been presented to us as
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1 something other than the alternatives that were

2 presented to us.  So I'm not sure if I'm making myself

3 clear, but there was -- through the subsequent hearing

4 days, we were picking up information kind of on the fly,

5 but there was, to my knowledge, no environmental people

6 that ever did anything west of the railroad and no

7 information that I recall was presented to us on the

8 environmental impact of putting lines to the west of the

9 railroad.

10          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  Why don't we do this.

11 Let's take a five-minute break, and real quickly,

12 Ms. Webb, you provided this letter to the Commission.  I

13 see that it is addressed to me.  Do you know they

14 haven't seen this before.

15          MS. WEBB:  From Mr. -- I didn't.

16          CHMN. MAYES:  I'm sorry, Ms. Campana did.  Can

17 you come back and tell us, did Mr. Altherr give this to

18 you?  Do you know whether it was delivered to the

19 Commission?  If you can come back, Ms. Campana.  Did --

20          MS. CAMPANA:  When the county administrator

21 determined that Mr. Hayes, who wrote the first letters,

22 had overstepped his bounds, he went to Scott Altherr,

23 the flood control manager, rather than coordinator and

24 said, you know, we need a letter of this that is a

25 little bit more factual, and Scott called me and said,
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1 Do you want me to mail this to them?  I said, No, it is

2 going to be today.  I will hand deliver it if you e-mail

3 it to me.

4          CHMN. MAYES:  So, all right, again, I just

5 wanted to be clear, because I had not received it, and

6 so he asked you to hand deliver it to us?

7          MS. CAMPANA:  Correct.  I told him we would be

8 up here, and we would hand deliver a copy to everyone.

9          CHMN. MAYES:  Commissioner Newman.

10          COM. NEWMAN:  And for the record, Mr. Lucero is?

11          MS. CAMPANA:  Is the county manager.

12          Can I add one more tiny piece?  West of the

13 railroad is 1200 to 1500 feet from the waterway, so

14 there will be no poles inside the river channel unless

15 they have a whale of a foundation that goes laterally.

16 It is probably a quarter mile.

17          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  Thank you.  And before we

18 take a break, again, I know that we can only treat this

19 as public comment.  It is not evidence in the case, but

20 for UniSource Electric, there is a final paragraph that

21 Commissioner Pierce didn't refer to in this letter that

22 I would like -- well, I guess I would like to have you

23 address, and it is -- he asks that if we choose the west

24 alignment that the designers would account for possible

25 lateral migration and erosion as has been designed in
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1 the aforementioned applications in our neighboring Pima

2 County.  And I'm wondering if you have any idea what he

3 means by that.  And we will come back in five minutes.

4          (Recess from 11:14 a.m. until 11:26 a.m.)

5          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  I think we are all back and

6 probably all talked out.  Commissioner Pierce, have you

7 moved this?

8          COM. PIERCE:  Yes, as amended.

9          CHMN. MAYES:  Commissioner Pierce has moved

10 Pierce Proposed Amendment Number 2 as amended.  There is

11 no additional discussion.

12          Madam secretary, please call the role.

13          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Commissioner Kennedy.

14          COM. KENNEDY:  Aye.

15          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Commissioner Stump.

16          COM. STUMP:  Madam Chair, I want to make certain

17 here that there has been no environmental study of this

18 alignment per Mr. Eberhart's comments.  My concern is

19 also on cost, so I vote, no.

20          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:   Commissioner Newman.

21          COM. NEWMAN:  I vote aye.

22          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Commissioner Pierce.

23          COM. PIERCE:  If I could, just for a moment, I

24 appreciate the fact that -- I appreciate what

25 Commissioner Stump said.  I believe the environment in
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1 the area is pretty much the same.  I think what has been

2 studied is fully sufficient, but I want to just say, I

3 know that Mr. Magruder is not here, but his efforts, I

4 mean, I think actually, he had been arguing for this for

5 quite a while and it is on the record.  He wanted this

6 on the west side, so I appreciate his efforts, and I

7 vote aye.

8          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Madam Chair Mayes.

9          CHMN. MAYES:  I also appreciate the efforts of

10 Mr. Magruder and Ms. Webb -- Mrs. Webb.  They did a very

11 good job in the line siting hearing, and I appreciate

12 the interest and concerns of all the residents, but I'm

13 going to vote no on this amendment.  I agree with

14 Commissioner Stump that the costs are a concern.  This

15 is, as Mr. Magruder often points out, one of the poorest

16 counties in Arizona and any additional costs that are

17 added to the bills of the electric utility customers in

18 Santa Cruz County I think have to be seriously

19 scrutinized and have to be strongly supported.  And in

20 fact, in this situation, while I agree with Commissioner

21 Newman that we have to care a great deal about the

22 environment, and I do in almost every case, I err on the

23 side of the environment.  In this situation, we have an

24 area that could flood, reliability could be seriously

25 impacted by that flood, and so given the cost associated
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1 with this change, given the reliability concerns, and

2 especially given the fact that the Line Siting Committee

3 spent four days on the ground in the area, I don't think

4 it should be the place of this Commission to overrule

5 the Line Siting Committee, and I don't say that

6 suggesting that we can, of course, never overrule the

7 Line Siting Committee.  I have in the past offered an

8 amendment to change a decision by the Line Siting

9 Committee, but in that case, Line 126, I chose a route

10 that had been studied by the Line Siting Committee, and

11 I don't believe this route was proposed to the Line

12 Siting Committee in a formal way and in a way that would

13 support a change by the -- at the Commission level, so I

14 vote no.

15          But you have passed the Pierce/Newman amendment

16 by a vote of three to two, so we will move on to, I

17 think, Newman Number 1, or, no, is that the one that --

18 I apologize.  We will go to Newman Number 2.

19          COM. NEWMAN:  Madam Chairman, I move Newman

20 Number 2.  This simply is a notice issue for the

21 Committee members in Santa Rita Foothills Community and

22 Hilton Road Community Association and Vail Preservation

23 Society.  There was community input at our last Open

24 Meeting regarding the lack of notice for those

25 organizations, and since they are vibrant organizations,
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1 I think those should be provided to those organizations

2 in the future.

3          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  Ms. Webb, would you like to

4 comment on this amendment and then to the Company and

5 Staff?

6          MS. WEBB:  I am in support of this amendment,

7 and from talking to the Company, and they will speak

8 now, that they are not going to oppose it.

9          CHMN. MAYES:  Great.  Ms. Derstine.

10          MR. DERSTINE:  No opposition to -- or, Madam

11 Chair, no opposition to Newman Proposed Amendment Number

12 2.

13          CHMN. MAYES:  And Staff, any comments?

14          MR. HAINS:  It is my understanding Staff has no

15 comments with respect to this amendment.

16          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay, well, it seems like a very

17 reasonable and appropriate amendment to me, so are there

18 any other comments from the bench on it or questions

19 about it?  Okay.  Commissioner Newman, did you move

20 that?

21          COM. NEWMAN:  I think I moved it.

22          CHMN. MAYES:  So Commissioner Newman has moved

23 his Proposed Amendment Number 2.  If there are no other

24 comments or concerns, Madam Secretary, please call the

25 role.
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1          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Commissioner Kennedy.

2          MS. KENNEDY:  Aye.

3          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Commissioner Stump.

4          COM. STUMP:  Aye.

5          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Commissioner Newman.

6          COM. NEWMAN:  Aye.

7          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Commissioner Pierce.

8          COM. PIERCE:  Aye.

9          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Madam Chairman.

10          CHMN. MAYES:  Aye.  Five Ayes passed Newman

11 Proposed Amendment Number 2.

12          And then I thought we would go to Pierce

13 Proposed Amendment Number 1.

14          COM. PIERCE:  Madam Chair, Pierce Proposed

15 Amendment 1, it is just an insert of striking 15 days to

16 30 days of notice.  I acknowledged that Mr. Magruder was

17 concerned about 500 people and 500 feet from the center

18 line, but I would like to ask the Company if more or

19 less people would receive that information -- number

20 that received notice with the 500 feet or just the

21 language as it is, where says, the parties and

22 landowners whose property is directly impacted shall

23 have 15 days to object inviting to the Commission.

24          MR. DERSTINE:  Madam Chair, Member Pierce, if

25 you were to adopt Mr. Magruder's additional language
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1 about extending notice to 500 feet from the center line

2 of the proposed project, I think that would cover more

3 homeowners or landowners and/or residents as currently

4 drafted.  The CEC is required to provide notice to

5 landowners who will have poles placed upon their

6 property, so I think Mr. Magruder's suggestion was to

7 not only extend the time for individuals to object or

8 respond to the Company's proposed pole finish plan, but

9 also to expand the notice area to extend beyond

10 landowners or residents who are going to have poles

11 placed on their property.

12          COM. PIERCE:  I would -- personally, I would

13 support the 500 feet.  I wasn't sure that that had the

14 impact that he was intentioning.  That is why I needed

15 to ask the question.  I just don't know if the rest of

16 the Commission wants me to make a verbal.  I won't if

17 that is not -- well, I will just offer the amendment as

18 it is, Madam Chair.

19          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  And if -- at the end of the

20 amendments, if we want to go back on an issue, we

21 certainly can and discuss it.  But so you've moved this

22 amendment?

23          COM. PIERCE:  I move Pierce Amendment Number 1.

24          CHMN. MAYES:  Pierce Amendment Number 1 has been

25 moved.  Any additional questions, concerns?  Newman.
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1          COM. NEWMAN:  Because of the response from the

2 Company, I'm just -- I was going to ask Commissioner

3 Pierce to explain exactly what this does.

4          COM. PIERCE:  What this amendment does is change

5 on Page 10 of the CEC, Line 13, it says, the parties and

6 landowners whose property is directly impacted shall

7 have 15 days to object in writing to the Commission.

8 This just gives them 30 days to object in writing, and

9 the part that Mr. Magruder, the parties and landowners

10 whose land is directly impacted, he wanted it to be

11 within 500 feet of the center line shall be given

12 30 days, too.  So that was the two parts of that.

13          COM. NEWMAN:  Well, I support your amendment.  I

14 have the same comments about understanding why

15 Mr. Magruder wanted the 500 feet, too, the extra feet.

16          CHMN. MAYES:  What was the view of the Company,

17 again, Mr. Derstine on the 500 feet?

18          MR. DERSTINE:  Madam Chair, I think our position

19 was at the Open Meeting that we had no strong objection

20 to making either of those changes, that is, extending

21 the time for an objection for 30 days and to expanding

22 the notice area for the pole finish plan to extend

23 500 feet from the center line.

24          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  Let me go to Ms. Webb on

25 this.
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1          MS. WEBB:  I can't say exactly what Mr. Magruder

2 was thinking, but I recall from a conversation that

3 because of the view shed issues associated with the

4 poles that those within 500 feet are directly impacted

5 by anything that goes in.  From my perspective,

6 especially given the situation with the Verona

7 subdivision, which is a plotted subdivision, west of the

8 Nogales tap by only 150, 200 feet, that is just one

9 example of a community that would, under the way the CEC

10 is written without the 500 feet wouldn't have as much

11 standing as somebody who just wrote a letter to the

12 Commissioners and made comment.  Personally, I would

13 like to see public comment -- I mean, people who had

14 made public comment, but if the notice is going to be

15 sent maybe to the associations, then they could disburse

16 the information on the northern end where there is more

17 view shed issues.

18          COM. PIERCE:  Madam Chair, I will make the

19 verbal, and if it flies yes or no, then we can amend the

20 amendment.  I will make a verbal amendment on Line 13 of

21 Page 10 of the CEC to remove directly impacted -- going

22 to it on Line 12 and 13.  We are going to remove the

23 line on Line 11, the last word is "directly."  Remove

24 that, and on the first line of 12 is "impacted."  And

25 line 13, the first two words "directly impacted," those
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1 will be replaced with, I will start out, property owned

2 and the property is, and the language is within 500 feet

3 of the center line.  So --

4          CHMN. MAYES:  On either side of the center line?

5          THE WITNESS:  On either line of the center line.

6 Okay.

7          CHMN. MAYES:  So Commissioner Pierce has made

8 the verbal amendment to his amendment.  All of those in

9 favor say aye.

10          COM. STUMP:  Aye.

11          COM. KENNEDY:  Aye.

12          COM. PIERCE:  Aye.

13          COM. NEWMAN:  Aye.

14          CHMN. MAYES:  Aye.

15          All those opposed.

16          Okay.

17          COM. PIERCE:  Madam Chair, I move Pierce

18 Proposed Amendment 1 as amended.

19          CHMN. MAYES:  Pierce Amendment 1 as amended has

20 been moved.  Any further discussion?

21          Madam Secretary, please call the role.

22          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Commissioner Kennedy.

23          MS. KENNEDY:  Aye.

24          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Commissioner Stump.

25          COM. STUMP:  Aye.
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1          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Commissioner Newman.

2          COM. NEWMAN:  Aye.

3          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Commissioner Pierce.

4          COM. PIERCE:  Aye.

5          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Madam Chair.

6          CHMN. MAYES:  Aye.

7          I hear a vote of five ayes, zero nays.  You have

8 passed Pierce Number 1.

9          Now I thought we would go to Kennedy Number 1.

10          MS. KENNEDY:  Thank you, Madam Chairman.  Thank

11 you for the indulgence of my colleagues.  I ask this

12 amendment be drafted knowing it would be somewhat

13 controversial, but I believe it is worth having a

14 discussion on how we -- how and when the public and

15 citizens have a right to play a more active role in the

16 line siting process.  I know it is unconventional to add

17 as a condition the requirements to establish a citizens

18 advisory committee; however, we are aware the Commission

19 has received numerous comments and e-mails on this one

20 issue alone, and I believe it is worth having a

21 discussion today about it.

22          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  And I certainly appreciate

23 the spirit in which it was offered.  Do we want to have

24 a comment from the parties?  And then Commissioner

25 Pierce has a question.
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1          Ms. Webb, thoughts?

2          MS. WEBB:  Actually, I wrote a whole page on it,

3 but I'm going to try and go ahead and condense them to

4 make it short.  I think it has been shown from a legal

5 perspective this can be done.  From a financial

6 standpoint, it makes sense.  If this project, which was

7 largely a rebuild or upgrade, had environmental costs of

8 $5.1 million, what is going to happen with the 20-plus

9 projects that are slated in this community over the next

10 25 years?  This is an investment, and this is the

11 project to do this with.  Given the 82 percent cost that

12 will go to TEP for the transformer, the testimony that

13 shows that hooking into the Vail substation will allow

14 UNS Electric to go into future renewable projects.  I

15 can't think of a better project to have this citizens

16 advisory council and very, very carefully, because my

17 mentor in my first case, who was like me and Marshall,

18 told me, you have to look at the law.  You have to look

19 at statutes, and that is what I've done.  I have very,

20 very carefully given testimony, oral argument, and in my

21 brief to show how this is legal.

22          From a financial standpoint, again, my estimate

23 is $100 million in 25 years for environmental.  Even if

24 you did one meeting a month at $1,000 a meeting, that is

25 only $12,000 a year, and I don't think one of these
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1 meetings would have to be $1,000, and I don't think they

2 have to meet every month.

3          Ethically, I believe that this needs to be in

4 place.  Those four or five days that were spent on the

5 contentious area, the mesquite bosque, should never ever

6 have happened.  It is something that shouldn't be

7 repeated.  And I know it is a learning process.  We

8 continue going forward, but here is an opportunity to

9 empower the citizens and the residents who live in the

10 area to give them an opportunity, and from a legal

11 standpoint the Applicant's attorneys have already

12 acknowledged that it is legal.  I've given you the

13 financial reasons.

14          As far as cost, there is $2 million left for

15 environmental on this project.  This could really help

16 when they go in front of the BLM for their environmental

17 work if they have a group of people that are willing to

18 advocate versus oppose.  Again, from a legal standpoint

19 this is going to be the best case that is going to offer

20 this opportunity, and I do have some e-mails that were

21 sent in last night from people in my community asking

22 for support of the Kennedy amendment, and it was only --

23 I only found out about it at 6:00, but if I could hand

24 these out, I would really appreciate it.

25          CHMN. MAYES:  That would be fine.  And then we
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1 will let you get seated again before we launch with

2 questions.

3          MS. WEBB:  Can I say one more thing real

4 quickly?

5          CHMN. MAYES:  Sure.

6          MS. WEBB:  Chairman Foreman did ask counsel what

7 counsel's opinion was on this.  What I tried to do with

8 the citizens oversight thing, because I thought it would

9 work better with the statutes, it was the opinion of

10 legal counsel it would not be legal.  There was

11 discussion by Member Mundell and Member Palmer about

12 perhaps making things better in the future and also

13 planning and processing in corridors and that sort of

14 thing.  So this was discussed by the Committee, and I

15 can't speak for everyone -- I can't speak for anyone on

16 the Committee.  One expressed he didn't believe in

17 groups.  I will acknowledge that.  But other than that,

18 it really -- it was a legal question.

19          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  Thank you, Ms. Webb.

20          And could the Company respond to the proposed

21 amendment?

22          MR. DERSTINE:  Yes, Madam Chair.  Our position

23 during the siting case was that this was not an

24 appropriate condition to a CEC and our position remains

25 the same today.  In looking at Kennedy Proposed
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1 Amendment 1, I certainly recognize and we had discussion

2 at the Open Meeting that the long range planning

3 organizations, the BTA, SATS study group, the other

4 sorts of long-term transmission planning groups are in

5 existence.  They are there.  They serve that function.

6 At the same time, they probably are not user friendly.

7 They are not easily accessible to members of the public

8 and neighborhood organizations and groups,

9 notwithstanding the fact that Mr. Magruder and Ms. Webb

10 have shown themselves to be very capable of attending

11 and giving valuable input to those organizations.

12          But our bottom line position is that this is not

13 an appropriate condition to the building of this

14 project.  Kennedy Amendment 1 states that the citizens

15 advisory council is to assist in neighborhood and

16 regional transmission planning relating to this project.

17 That has been done.  That is what was done over the

18 years that led up to the filing of this application, and

19 then that public process was then presented to the

20 Siting Committee, and the Siting Committee then analyzed

21 the routes that were developed through that process,

22 through that planning process and issued the CEC you

23 have before you today.  So there is no real planning to

24 be done.  You have the CEC before you.  It establishes a

25 route and how this project is to be built.
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1          The need, and what Ms. Webb testified to during

2 the course of the five days of hearings before the

3 Siting Committee was that there are a large number of

4 projects being planned for the Vail area.  There needs

5 to be greater input for neighborhood organizations as to

6 how those projects -- where those projects are placed,

7 what impacts they may have on neighborhoods and the

8 residents in the Vail area.  That sort of long-term

9 planning and the impact of 20-plus projects that are

10 being analyzed by the utilities for this area of Pima

11 County is not unique to Pima County.  The fact of the

12 matter is that Pima County in the Vail area, as well as

13 other locations within Pima County, have a large number

14 of projects planned throughout the long-term planning

15 process as this Commission mandates, through the 10-year

16 plans, the 20-year plans, the biennial transmission

17 assessments.  This isn't unique to the Vail area.  This

18 isn't unique to Pima County.  The same sorts of issues I

19 think are being faced by residents of Pinal County where

20 you have a large number of projects being built by

21 Maricopa County.

22          So if the view from this Commission is that

23 neighborhoods and residents need some greater voice,

24 they need a different forum to be able to be engaged in

25 long-term planning, then I think that is an appropriate
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1 discussion to have, and it is my understanding that the

2 staff meeting this afternoon, that is one of the items

3 that is on the agenda.  But to make the creation of an

4 advisory council and have Tucson Electric Power Company

5 create an advisory council to then take input into the

6 planning of this project is, again, not an appropriate

7 condition for this project.  It may be an important

8 discussion to have.  It may be an idea that has merit

9 and should be addressed in some sort of a broader forum,

10 but this isn't the place to tack it on to a condition of

11 this project.

12          CHMN. MAYES:  Member Kennedy.

13          MS. KENNEDY:  Can you tell me who is going to

14 pay for these projects, this project and future

15 projects?

16          MR. DERSTINE:  Ultimately, it will be the

17 customers of the utilities who build those projects.

18          MS. KENNEDY:  So Madam Chair, Mr. Derstine, so

19 you don't think they should have an input?

20          MR. DERSTINE:  Madam Chair, Member Kennedy, I

21 think that, and UNS Electric believes and I think the

22 other utilities in this state believe that residents,

23 folks are impacted by these projects should very much

24 have a say, and that when we build -- when we develop

25 these projects, we develop a public process that is



UNS / Vail to Valencia 9/23/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 OM / Item U-20   

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
Arizona Reporting Service, Inc. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

61

1 intended to gain the input, to notify residents, to get

2 their input and to get their views on these projects.

3 Not always are the folks who have a say the ratepayer.

4 In this case, Ms. Webb is not a ratepayer of UNS

5 Electric.  She is not a customer of UNS Electric, but I

6 think that UNS Electric and Tucson Electric Power

7 Company and UniSource believes, as I think the other

8 utilities in the state believe, neighborhoods,

9 residents, the citizens of this state should very much

10 have input, and the public process for these projects

11 has been developed over time and continues to change as

12 we get more and more feedback, and the public are

13 becoming more increasingly involved.  But if there

14 continues to be a gap, that the projects aren't getting

15 enough input or there ought to be broader forum for

16 that, I think we are for that.  It is not our position

17 that customers should not have a say, should not have

18 input.  They should, and we try to get that.

19          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  Commissioner Pierce, and

20 then we will go down the line.

21          COM. PIERCE:  Thank you, Madam Chair, Ms. Webb.

22 The amendment talks about this committee being set up

23 and is related to this project, so it wouldn't be, in

24 my -- from my reading of it, the future.  And really,

25 are you concerned about this project at this point after
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1 today, or are you concerned about the future?

2          MS. WEBB:  Madam Chair, Commissioner Pierce,

3 when I made my arguments, I made them specifically to

4 this project because of the CEC process, and in this

5 case, through the testimony, it has been shown that

6 there is an intent by UNS Electric to tie into the Vail

7 substation for future renewable projects.  Now, the Vail

8 substation specifically has 17 projects planned in the

9 next 25 years.  82 percent of the 345kV transformer is

10 going to be acquired as a result of this project.

11 Recognizing the CEC process does not permit the

12 transformer, the Applicant has acknowledged that it is a

13 part of this application.

14          And I also would like to state, the Committee

15 does a good job.  They really do.  But Mr. Derstine said

16 they spent five days going over this.  We just heard

17 testimony that they spent four days going over the

18 mesquite bosque area of approximately 1.6 miles.  No

19 matter how good of a job the Committee does and no

20 matter how much public outreach improves, the statutory

21 siting job is on an individual basis.  By the time that

22 comes to the public, it has already been decided.  Those

23 routes have been decided.  That need has been

24 determined, and what I actually asked was for this to

25 mirror the SATS process.  I discussed this several times
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1 with the Company.  I said, let's go ahead and set up a

2 group.  You wouldn't even have to continue doing it.

3 After a couple years, it could be autonomous.  You have

4 these meetings, and then you invite your group to be and

5 have a breakout session at one of the BTA sessions.

6          I also would like to note that when the sats and

7 I have the whole SATS book here right in front of me,

8 when it was set up, that was something that the

9 companies did, because it made fiscal planning and all

10 kinds of stents to do that.  It was the Commission who

11 then added it to the BTA.  Somebody has to be first when

12 these things happen, and this is the case, given the

13 number of associated projects in the future and

14 cumulative effects and direct and indirect impacts to

15 the community related to this project.  Thank you.

16          COM. PIERCE:  Well, I'm -- I know that -- I

17 thought about this, and I think other commissioners

18 from -- the letter from Commissioner Newman about really

19 the appropriateness of this in all of these cases, and

20 setting up a structure I think is something that may be

21 discussed later today to arrive at that, which would

22 cover the future that I mentioned.  That is what I

23 asked, because this project, what we are deciding on

24 today, you say has fingers to it, so to speak, and that

25 there are other things that are being touched by this,
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1 but I'm just trying to decide for myself if there is --

2 if I wouldn't rather have a structure around these types

3 of councils that I would prefer to see in all -- with

4 all of the utilities, and not have one that -- I'm not

5 sure just how it is going -- I think I'm having more

6 input to what will happen.

7          And, also, in the amendment, it really doesn't

8 put a time certain as to when an applicant will create

9 an assistant advisory council.  It does say that within

10 30 days of the creation, they have to file something in

11 the docket, so I think that is left a little bit loose,

12 as well.  Thank you, Madam Chair.

13          CHMN. MAYES:  Commissioner Newman.

14          COM. NEWMAN:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  I support

15 the Kennedy amendment, but Mr. Pierce alluded to a

16 letter that I wrote a couple days ago.  In thinking

17 about it for a couple weeks, the letter is dated

18 September 22nd, so really hasn't been submitted that

19 long ago at all.  I've been thinking about writing this

20 letter, and it finally got out.

21          But really, I'm thinking about it, citizens

22 advisory councils similarly to what Mr. Pierce was

23 saying, as a potential structure to reach out to

24 community members in what will be one of the biggest

25 jobs of the Commission for the next ten years, besides
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1 just doing our normal job of ratemaking and securities

2 and every other thing that we do, we are going to have

3 to have -- and the Committee, and the Siting Committee

4 is going to have increasing responsibilities with regard

5 to these lines.  Depending on who you talk to, there may

6 be renewable energy lines that we are going to be

7 looking at in the future.  There is going to be, as

8 Ms. Webb pointed out, a series of lines in the Vail area

9 that are, I know, even controversial as we speak, and

10 that is one of the reasons I support the Kennedy

11 amendment today.

12          But I do look forward to having a broader

13 discussion of this, and I see it as -- I would like it

14 to be a unanimous sort of discussion.  I would like for

15 this Commission, if it is possible, to have, you know, a

16 bipartisan agreement that we want to provide, get

17 citizens more involved in the line siting process.  I

18 think ultimately it would help the Line Siting

19 Committee, although, evidently, one member of the

20 Committee has demurred on that, but I think it is

21 helpful.  We are going to be seeing people come out of

22 the woodwork all over this state over some of these

23 projects that will be very costly and go through some

24 tenuous environmental zones, and I think that this is a

25 positive thing if we can implement such a structure, and
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1 so I support the Kennedy amendment.  I'm glad she

2 brought it today, and I will be voting yes.  I look

3 forward to the discussion, when we have our staff

4 meeting, which will probably be one of several.  This is

5 not something that can be done overnight in terms of

6 setting up a structure, and I would like to be able to

7 take public input from different organizations in the

8 state, and as my letter sets out, I have a rather -- my

9 most utopian goal would be to try to set up a citizens

10 council in major service areas throughout the state, not

11 just for this service area.

12          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  Thank you, Commissioner

13 Newman.  Commissioner Stump.

14          COM. STUMP:  Thanks, Madam Chair.  Ms. Webb, did

15 you have a sense of, at this point, who might choose the

16 members of the citizens advisory council and what the

17 composition of it might be?  That would be my first

18 question, and then, secondly, do you have a sense yet of

19 what their scope of authority might be?  Obviously, my

20 concern would be that, you know, they could still be

21 overlooked potentially after adding that input, valuable

22 although I know it would be.  So I was just curious to

23 know your thoughts on those two points.

24          MS. WEBB:  Chairman Mayes, Commissioner Stump,

25 when I first entered this, I had all kinds of very
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1 specific details down to the kind of snacks they should

2 serve, and I really cut back as far as the composition.

3 What I originally asked for was environmental groups,

4 community organizations, governmental organizations that

5 would like to be involved that typically don't have

6 jurisdiction, such as Pima County.  Also, when I spoke

7 with BLM about this, they said they would like to have

8 all their projects so they can know what is going on

9 with it.  This is not limited to a special interest

10 group.  I would like to see the Company and then, you

11 know, hold an outreach or town hall -- I like that word

12 better than town hall, and specifically invite these

13 different organizations, including the safety responders

14 out in our area.  The city is overannexed, and a lot of

15 these areas are taken care of by a very small fire

16 department, which is Corona de Tucson Fire Department.

17 So I really envision, and I hate to say the Vail area.

18 I would like to say within the 425 square miles.  Also

19 to include Sonoita, because there is a portion of

20 Sonoita in Pima County and served by TEP.  And with UNS

21 Electric, Marshall wants these two separate things, and

22 I appreciate that, but right now, there just has to be

23 somebody who is first, and then it can be evolved once

24 the composition is done, the details and so forth.

25          As far as the scope, my idea was to go ahead and



UNS / Vail to Valencia 9/23/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 OM / Item U-20   

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
Arizona Reporting Service, Inc. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

68

1 have it to where it has to be docketed, to have an

2 agenda, to have some public notice, and then I honestly

3 believe, as my discussions with Mr. Beck were, if the

4 Commission or prior, the Committee, orders it, they will

5 do it.  And I really believe they will work with us, but

6 there needs to be some sort of accountability, and that

7 means it needs to be docketed.  And then, I think from

8 there, it is not my job.  I think it is the Commission's

9 job to decide how much weight should be given, but my

10 experience has been that the Commission listens to the

11 public.  And I think it is going to save the Company

12 money, because these people are on their own.  They know

13 these things, because they live there.

14          COM. STUMP:  Madam Chair, Ms. Webb, I appreciate

15 that.  That clarifies my thinking a lot.  I suppose one

16 could argue about the fact you are here and Mr. Magruder

17 have all been engage and informal ones exists already.

18 The point you made is the contents of your discussions

19 need to be docketed, et cetera, and the fact that if

20 there were a formal one set up, then it would at least

21 ensure that the Company, as you feel, will not take you

22 for granted perhaps as you feel they have in the past,

23 as well.

24          Madam Chair, Ms. Webb, I just had one more

25 question.  Some mention has been made of the BTA
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1 process, SATS, et cetera.  Have you found that to be,

2 those groups to be accessible in any way, or have they

3 not been accessible, do you feel, to the average

4 citizen?

5          MS. WEBB:  Chairman Mayes, Commissioner Stump,

6 as I said at the open hearing, I got several times to be

7 included in this new process, but fundamentally, it is

8 for extra high voltage bulk transmission, and I do

9 envision a role with the Committee involved in the SATS

10 process.  You know, like I said, as a breakout session

11 at these other sessions, but, again, with the

12 accountability and I think it can set a model for the

13 entire state.  I absolutely agree that we are not the

14 only community that is going to be affected by these.  I

15 was quoted in the newspaper because I do support

16 renewable energy, but I don't think people in their

17 minds know that along with that comes transmission

18 lines, and I was being a little flip when I said it.  I

19 said, where do the people think the electricity is going

20 to come from, the renewable energy fairy.  No, it is

21 going to come from -- and again, it is in the newspaper.

22 Again, there is going to be transmission lines.  As a

23 matter of fact, there is a huge solar project that I did

24 enter as one of my exhibits that has just been now on

25 the power transmission project line for TEP.
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1          And, again, that is -- somebody has to be first,

2 but as to Commissioner Pierce real quick.  Commissioner

3 Pierce talks about the loosey-goosey kind of thing.  I

4 was hoping there would be some sort of a time frame to

5 say when it would have to be set up by.  When I spoke

6 with the Company, I thought four, six months.  You know,

7 it takes a while.  It has to be done right, just like

8 Commissioner Newman said, but there should probably be

9 something.  Sorry.  Thank you.

10          COM. STUMP:  Thanks.

11          CHMN. MAYES:  Thank you, Commissioner Stump.

12          While, Ms. Webb, I agree with you that such an

13 advisory council could end up saving the Company money

14 and certainly some heartburn, I'm thinking of my no vote

15 on the change of the line to the westerly direction.  If

16 that had been studied properly, I think I might have

17 been more comfortable voting for it, but it, frankly,

18 wasn't studied properly.  And many issues that I had

19 heartburn over I think haven't been examined properly,

20 and I'm sure your council would have had that line, that

21 area studied, so that this Commission could have cast a

22 more confident vote, or at least this Commissioner could

23 have.

24          But I -- you did mention something that does

25 pique my curiosity.  Are you believing that the Company
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1 is going to expend a significant amount of money on

2 these advisory councils?  You indicated you thought, and

3 I wrote this down, $2 million left for environmental on

4 this project.  Are you expecting that money would be

5 spent on, or any of that money would be spent on, these

6 councils?  And then, my next question is, obviously,

7 then the Company is going to come back to the Commission

8 and ask for ratepayer recovery of that.  I just want us

9 to be clear and on the record who is paying for it.

10          MS. WEBB:  Absolutely, I agree.  Member Palmer

11 made a comment during the hearings that we can't change

12 the past, but we can maybe change it to make it better

13 in the future, and I paraphrased it.  I believe it is

14 pretty close from the transcript.

15          Even if this council met four times in a year

16 and we say it was a really expensive meeting of $1,000,

17 that is $4,000 for a year.  Being that they have

18 testified that there are going to be possible future

19 renewable hookups into this project, I think the

20 long-term cost benefit, when you do a cost benefit

21 analysis, is absolutely overwhelming.  The reason why I

22 suggested it be a joint thing with TEP and UNS Electric,

23 understanding it is a very poor county, I don't believe

24 that that amount of money, $5.1 million for

25 environmental work, I think that needs to change,
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1 because as a ratepayer, when it comes to my community

2 and there are 20 projects, does this mean my rates are

3 going to increase every time there is a $5 or $3 million

4 environmental?  Because that includes the public

5 outreach portion of it.  We had five days of meetings

6 for a case that, as Member Eberhart said, thought was

7 going to be a day or two.  Right there, that is probably

8 five years' worth of -- I know how expensive this is,

9 and I can't keep doing it.

10          CHMN. MAYES:  So the answer is you are expecting

11 the ratepayers to pay for it and the Company to pay for

12 it, or at least the Company to pay for it.  And then, my

13 next question is, there is nothing in this amendment

14 that limits the number of meetings or the amount of

15 money spent on the meetings.  How does the outreach get

16 paid for?  Who is going to pay for the outreach?  I'm

17 just worried about limiting factors.  Maybe that is a

18 question for Commissioner Kennedy.  I think we at least

19 have to talk about who is going to pay for it and how

20 much it is going to cost, how many meetings, how many

21 different projects.  If it is your view that these

22 councils cover every single project related to the

23 Vail -- the Vail substation, is that 17 projects, and is

24 that multiplied by ten meetings a year?  What are we

25 talking about here?
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1          MS. WEBB:  Madam Chair, again, I have the SATS

2 book here.  I think if this were broken down for the

3 public, it would be really easy to understand.  It makes

4 sense.  You get these different utility companies

5 together, and they make these decisions.  I don't think

6 we would need to have ten separate meetings.  I think

7 what we can do is get together and do some planning.  We

8 could say, we could use this as a framework, have

9 meetings that talk about a lot of different transmission

10 issues, and if it needs to be broken down so that we

11 don't -- I really see this becoming more autonomous.  It

12 needs guidance.  It needs to be set up by the utilities,

13 because they have a framework in place, and this would

14 save a lot of money.

15          CHMN. MAYES:  Autonomous from the utility?

16          THE WITNESS:  I mean from a financial

17 standpoint.  You could go to a coffee shop.  It doesn't

18 have to be really fancy.  Here is my way out there

19 thing.  I really believe if public outreach were done

20 adequately for all areas equally, that this wouldn't

21 have cost as much.  So perhaps this could come out of

22 the Company's public outreach money.  I don't know the

23 legal words to say it, but I know that I've spent like

24 $100 on this and Marshall spent about $900.  I can't

25 even imagine how much it costs to have those extra days,
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1 so if that did have to come from the Company and not

2 from the project and the ratepayers, I don't think it is

3 unreasonable, because somebody is paying for the SATS

4 project.  So anyhow, I don't know if that answers your

5 question.

6          CHMN. MAYES:  Not entirely, but I guess it is

7 sort of open-ended.  And, again, I want to be clear, I'm

8 very, very in favor of the concept, but I don't think

9 we've answered quite the question of what it will cost

10 and who is going to pay for it.

11          So Commissioner Pierce.

12          COM. PIERCE:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  The

13 money, and you've mentioned that actually in prior cases

14 you talked about the expense.  I think every time really

15 that I think it is one that any family that is putting

16 out something that is not directed to their family is

17 probably something that gets discussed in probably

18 elevated terms in a family discussion, I'm sure.  So

19 could you support something like this, though, if this

20 sort of committee was established but without -- without

21 financial support from the Company?

22          MS. WEBB:  I wouldn't have as much tie into this

23 if I didn't expend so much of my resources.  I really

24 honestly believe that we are missing -- there is

25 something like -- there is this big elephant in the
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1 room.  We are missing a component.  This is our land.

2 This is our view shed.  These are our rates.  So I

3 really would have a difficult time with that, because I

4 believe that this will save the Company money, a lot of

5 money.  And I don't think it is unreasonable.

6          Again, somebody has to be first, and somebody

7 has to take a chance, but it is not unreasonable.  This

8 is the case from a legal perspective to be able to do

9 this.

10          COM. PIERCE:  The state already has guidelines

11 for reimbursement for various committees and

12 organization and that sort of thing, and I would suspect

13 that those are the type of limits that would be

14 installed on this type of a committee, and in looking at

15 the amendment, is the Company going to be responsible

16 for setting up that structure?  Is that how you envision

17 this?

18          MS. WEBB:  I think we have a structure in place

19 with the SATS group.  From my reading of the files on

20 line, it is a group of guys.  There is a girl in there.

21 It is a group of guys that get together and talk about

22 transmission lines sometimes down at Ft. Huachuca,

23 sometimes down here.  Again, I had it very specific in

24 my original CEC, and I thought the Company working with

25 all of these different organizations could come up with
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1 a framework.  Then get it to the Commission or the

2 Commission staff and see if that is okay, because it is

3 not going to be perfect.

4          COM. PIERCE:  See, and that is more like the

5 letter I received from Commissioner Newman, I think is

6 proposing actually coming together with a policy that is

7 legal, that works for this, and because I think there is

8 more to it.  We want to make sure it is done and done

9 right.  Also, if we were to put -- if we were to add a

10 time certain of 180 days, six months, I wonder if maybe

11 that -- I will ask the Company, too, would that work,

12 understanding that at the same time, it is very possible

13 that the Commission could be working towards the same

14 type of organization creation.  And so I think a date

15 certain is probably a good thing, but at the same time,

16 I'm trying to figure out how to support this, because I

17 know that the Commission will react and will supersede

18 this, and if we are actually going to do that, then we

19 really need this.  I'm trying to figure out -- the

20 reason I say that, are we just trying to do this to make

21 you feel good today when, in fact, we are going to do

22 something that supersedes it in the same amount of time

23 potentially.  You see?

24          MS. WEBB:  M'hum.  I think it is about buy-in.

25 And it took us almost two years to come up with a
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1 mission envision statement for the Vail Preservation

2 Society.  So I think it would take a lot, and Arizona is

3 big.  I think it would take longer for the Commission to

4 come up with something like that, and I think this

5 company, I heard via the grapevine, you said, well, how

6 come TEP doesn't come to us for rate increases all the

7 time?  I don't know if that is true or not.  My point

8 is, this company can be progressive.  It is getting

9 better.  I said some things that it improved already,

10 but the thing is, I don't honestly think 180 days that

11 the Commission would have something, and I don't want to

12 be rude.  I just think -- I just know how things

13 happened with time.

14          Another thing to take into consideration, you

15 are getting free environmental work from these

16 volunteers.  The only thing I'm asking for is someone to

17 mail the stuff out.  Time would be free.  Maybe that

18 could change or evolve later, but these are people other

19 than the government agencies who would be doing this

20 because they care about their community.

21          COM. PIERCE:  And I know you are really talking

22 about covering actual expenses, and I do believe there

23 is probably some, I'm sure there is a statute that

24 governs that sort of thing, but I was asking the

25 Company, would 180 days be an appropriate time to come
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1 up with something that, as you've talked about, you

2 would support more involvement.  Is that an adequate

3 amount of time, since, obviously, Ms. Webb was brutally

4 honest about the pace of the Commission on some things.

5 Some things we move very quickly.  I'm just not sure.

6 She may be right in this type of thing.  Today it is on

7 the front burner.  Tomorrow other things are on the

8 front burner, so I understand that, and our budgets are

9 short here, so how we move on this type of issue may be

10 something really that we just want input from the

11 Company at the same time.  Maybe that is the -- I'm not

12 sure.  All I'm saying is, could the Company put together

13 something since there is a framework she mentioned

14 already to work with citizens in this capacity?

15          MR. DERSTINE:  Madam Chair, Commissioner Pierce,

16 I don't know whether 180 days is appropriate.  I don't

17 know what this committee would do, frankly.  As I

18 mentioned, the planning for this project has been done.

19 The routes have been selected.  You voted an amendment

20 to slightly alter the route that was approved by the

21 Siting Committee.  What is left from a planning

22 perspective is having environmental work performed that

23 is required and then to build this project.  So from a

24 planning and input perspective, that has been done, and

25 that is the public process that was done on the front
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1 end, and we didn't have a case, and we don't have a case

2 before you where you have members of the community,

3 residents within proximity of this line coming in and

4 saying, the Siting Committee made a bad choice or this

5 route was not compatible.  The record before the Siting

6 Committee establishes that within the leg, Segment 1,

7 above was supported by Ms. Webb.  The Company's

8 preferred route was supported by Ms. Webb.  There was no

9 opposition to it.  The public process was established

10 that the folks within a mile on either side of this line

11 got notice.  They got newsletters.  The public process,

12 the communication about this project, the getting

13 feedback from the residents and the folks in the view

14 shed of this project was done.

15          So the concern, as I heard it and what was the

16 original justification for this citizens advisory

17 council was focused more on the multiplicity of projects

18 that were going to be coming in and out of Vail in the

19 years to come.  And so creating a council within

20 180 days or 90 days or six months, I don't know what

21 that would do as it relates to this project.  And so

22 will it create more cost to this project?  Yes,

23 depending on what you want us to do and how often you

24 want us to meet and all the whats and wherefors that no

25 one seems to have an understanding of.  I certainly
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1 don't in terms of what we would do, how we would staff

2 it, who would sit on it, how many times it would meet.

3 Those are costs.  So those, indeed, would incur

4 additional costs.

5          So a planning group for this project, as I've

6 said, the Company does not believe is appropriate as a

7 condition to this CEC, as a condition to have the

8 Company build and rebuild this line in Santa Cruz County

9 as we agreed to do before a reliability docket.  But,

10 again, to the point of is there a broader context?  Is

11 there -- are there groups where a citizens advisory

12 council could be an adjunct to the SATS study group or

13 as part of the BAT where a neighborhood organization

14 could have greater input, that seems to me that that is

15 something that obviously is -- there obviously is a

16 need.

17          And to Commissioner Kennedy's point, we want

18 that input.  We want that feedback, but creating a

19 citizens advisory council as a condition to this project

20 to assist with planning, I don't see it as doing

21 anything for this project.  It isn't going to reduce any

22 costs for this project, so it is more of, as I see the

23 need, a long-term planning aspect.  And is there a place

24 for it?  Should there be discussions about how to do

25 that and how to do that effectively, not only in Pima
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1 County and the Vail area of Pima County, but state wide?

2 I think that is where the need is, but it is not a need

3 here as a condition to this project.

4          COM. PIERCE:  Okay.  I think that is pretty much

5 the crux of it.  I'm just trying to find if there is a

6 similar path here, but, you know, that is why I look at

7 this, after today, our part of this is really put to bed

8 and the input is really put to bed, so in looking

9 forward, it seems to me that we should head down a path

10 of some structural input from the Company and from

11 citizens to see how we want to do this and proceed from

12 there.  Thank you.

13          CHMN. MAYES:  Commissioner Newman.

14          COM. NEWMAN:  Yeah, I didn't expect to go to

15 round two, but sort of factual background.  There was,

16 and help me on the history, because I haven't been here

17 too long.  I thought I saw something in the file that

18 said that at some point, some citizens commission was

19 ordered for UniSource because of their lack of -- maybe

20 not UniSource, maybe their predecessor to UniSource for

21 their lack of interaction with community groups and was

22 actually -- it started off as an extra condition, almost

23 one would say even a punitive condition, because the

24 Company predecessor was not interacting with the

25 community well enough.  Is that -- I just want to give a
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1 little background as to why it might relate to this

2 case, as well, but in a broader theme.  You know what

3 I'm referring to.

4          MR. DERSTINE:  Madam Chair, Commissioner Newman,

5 I think the citizens council that you are referring to

6 was one that was created as part of or in connection

7 with a lawsuit or a complaint that was filed before this

8 Commission in or about 1999 by the City of Nogales

9 relating to service issues at that time with Citizens

10 Electric, and so there were proceedings at that time as

11 part of the docket that was established, as part of the

12 City of Nogales complaint against Citizens.  There was

13 this group, a citizens advisory council, I think, that

14 was created at that time to address what were

15 significant reliability issues on the Citizens system

16 in -- that were being experienced by residents of the

17 City of Nogales, as well as Santa Cruz County.  So it

18 was part of that case.  It was created as part of a

19 litigation between the City of Nogales and Citizens, and

20 it served its purpose and is no longer functioning and

21 has not functioned for years.  So that was a specific

22 organization created to address those issues in that

23 case.

24          COM. NEWMAN:  So when you took over the Company,

25 had it been disbanded before you took over the Company,
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1 or I just want -- that is not in the record; right?

2          MR. DERSTINE:  It is my understanding the last

3 meeting of that council occurred before UniSource

4 acquired the Citizens facilities in Santa Cruz and

5 Mohave County.

6          COM. NEWMAN:  And I just wanted that to be part

7 of the record.  It also makes it somewhat unique to this

8 particular case, which is why I considered bringing the

9 amendment, and somebody did bring the amendment.  So

10 there is a history there.

11          One can argue, ironically, that that council

12 that was to put fire in the belly of your predecessor,

13 you know, they ran away, but a good suitor came along,

14 and the shining knight of UniSource, and now we have a

15 reliable line in Santa Cruz County as of this date.  So

16 one could argue that is an initial example of how a

17 citizens council might be able to help.  Is that right?

18          MR. DERSTINE:  I don't know much more about that

19 citizens council and how it functioned and its purpose

20 other than what -- the facts that I related to you just

21 a minute ago.

22          COM. NEWMAN:  I don't either.  If Mr. Magruder

23 were here, he probably would have more to say about

24 that, but I just wanted to bring that point forward.

25 You know, I think we have to vote this up and down
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1 eventually, but I do look forward to, as my letter says,

2 as we discuss utilities in the future and the

3 Commission's interaction with these utilities, I think

4 that this concept has promise, and I do really think

5 that we are going to be seeing a lot of transmission

6 work on our table and that citizens groups request help,

7 and I think they would help here, which is why I

8 indicated earlier that I was going to vote for the

9 amendment.

10          CHMN. MAYES:  And I -- sorry.

11          COM. NEWMAN:  I'm done.  I didn't mean to talk

12 that much.

13          CHMN. MAYES:  You know, I want to support the

14 amendment, too, but I can't support it unless it is made

15 clear that right now the citizens advisory council would

16 be voluntary until we had a chance to address the cost

17 issue.  I think at least we owe it to the ratepayers to

18 address that in a more uniform way.

19          And Commissioner Kennedy, do you have any

20 thoughts?

21          MS. KENNEDY:  I'm willing to take -- to

22 entertain a friendly motion.

23          CHMN. MAYES:  Great.  Then I would do that.

24 Ms. Webb, I know you are not in favor of that, but I

25 think what you're seeking to do is create a compensated
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1 advisory council.

2          MS. WEBB:  No.

3          CHMN. MAYES:  No?  Well, you indicated to me

4 earlier that there would be expenses related to this

5 committee paid for by the utility; correct?

6          MS. WEBB:  Madam Chair, and now I'm getting a

7 little confused, too.  When I say expenses, I mean

8 administratively.  There would have to be somebody that

9 sets it up, and if they order, you know, a sandwich from

10 Egee's or a pizza from Pizza Hut or something, that kind

11 of cost, and then there is staff.  That is more what I'm

12 talking about.  The rest of it, it would be strictly

13 voluntary as far as that goes, and I don't know if I'm

14 still not quite understanding.

15          CHMN. MAYES:  Well, you indicated possibly a

16 thousand dollars a meeting, you know.

17          MS. WEBB:  I was thinking of the cost of where

18 they have to go to sit.

19          CHMN. MAYES:  And that is my concern.  We don't

20 know exactly what those parameters are going to be

21 without those kind of specifics and without the

22 Commission deciding whether, A, we are okay with such

23 expenditures, and, B, what they ought to be, I think

24 that if we are going to vote for this, and, again, I

25 want to support it, we ought to make it clear it is a



UNS / Vail to Valencia 9/23/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 OM / Item U-20   

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
Arizona Reporting Service, Inc. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

86

1 voluntarily citizens advisory council.  I don't know if

2 that is clear enough, that it is voluntary and that it

3 is something that is going -- that would not require

4 expenditures by the utility's ratepayers right now.

5          MS. WEBB:  I'm being so stupid, and I apologize.

6 I'm not quite understanding.  Would the administrative

7 costs then be covered, I mean, for letting people know

8 and the docket, or would we be responsible for the

9 docket filings and the notes and making sure people are

10 notified?  That is where -- I know I'm being stupid.

11          CHMN. MAYES:  I don't think you are being stupid

12 at all, but you know, the idea of paying for dinners,

13 paying for a location would not be on the table right

14 now.

15          MS. WEBB:  Then I would absolutely support it if

16 it was at a location -- you know, people can go and buy

17 their own, you know, soda and what have you.  Can I make

18 one point to this?  If this case is already done and

19 there wouldn't be any future use to this, I disagree

20 because there is a BLM process, and the BLM process

21 considers future and foreseeable and cumulative impacts.

22 They haven't put in for the right-of-way yet, so

23 probably realistically will take over a year for that

24 scoping to begin in some way, shape, or form.  If

25 something like this were established, it absolutely
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1 could save costs, because we could go in to the BLM

2 scoping meetings and say, we discussed these issues.  It

3 would save on legal time.  It would save on -- so

4 absolutely, there is still something attached to this

5 case.

6          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  Appreciate that.

7          Commission Kennedy.

8          MS. KENNEDY:  Madam Chair, I will yield to you.

9          CHMN. MAYES:  Well, I would suggest that we

10 insert the word voluntary on the first line between the

11 A and citizens and making it clear that at this time,

12 the Commission does not believe that there should be

13 utility-related expenditures of money related to these

14 councils, and we are going to, this afternoon, discuss

15 this idea that has been brought forward both by

16 Commissioner Kennedy and Newman at the staff meeting

17 where we can flush out some of these issues and set up a

18 process designed to address cost issues and meeting

19 times.

20          I would add, we've got to talk about, you

21 know -- I think the Commission has the authority to do

22 this, because it is transmission planning and not

23 transmission siting.  Transmission siting is uniquely a

24 statutory duty, and I would not want to do anything that

25 would be an overlay onto what is basically a statutory
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1 duty set aside and designed to be done by the Committee

2 which has a public member, has a representative of the

3 Commission, has a representative of all these agencies.

4 So we need to hash that out and make it clear that there

5 is a distinction here between the role of these advisory

6 councils and the role of the siting committee.  And as

7 several Commissioners have said, what the authority is.

8 But anyway, that is the long and short of it,

9 Commissioner Kennedy.  I don't know if you are okay with

10 that.

11          COM. KENNEDY:  Madam Chair, I move the Proposed

12 Amendment 1 and propose a verbal amendment.  After,

13 applicant will create a, insert "voluntary."

14          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  And that verbal amendment

15 has been made.  I'm looking at the rest of the amendment

16 now.  After determining -- it says, after determining

17 the composition at meeting scheduled, the group notice

18 shall be docketed and sent to all parties and members of

19 the public who made comment on this project.  And I

20 guess, Ms. Webb's question is, who then pays for that?

21          Do you -- Ms. Webb, do you have an e-mail list

22 that you can use?  You don't have the public comment

23 list presumably.

24          MS. WEBB:  You know, I could take out -- it

25 sounds like this is something the Commission would hash
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1 out a lot of details later.  Of course, this is

2 Commissioner Kennedy's.  There is a list, but it has

3 been redacted in the application with the addresses, so

4 I believe the Company has that information.

5          And then, as far as public outreach groups, I

6 can go on the docket and see who has their addresses.

7 That is there.  That is something I would be willing to

8 undertake from a volunteer perspective.

9          MS. KENNEDY:  Madam Chair, if I could ask

10 Mr. Hains, since he helped put this amendment together,

11 he could assist in kind of the verbal.

12          MS. ALWARD:  If you could give us a moment.

13          MS. KENNEDY:  Thank you.

14          MR. HAINS:  Madam Chair, Commissioner Kennedy,

15 if we could, Staff would like to ask for about a

16 five-minute break to consider what all materials there

17 are that could be used as a reference point to create

18 the appropriate amendment.

19          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay, sure.  We will take a

20 five-minute break.  I do want to get this voted out

21 before we go to lunch.

22          (Recess from 12:33 p.m. until 12:43 p.m.)

23          COM. MAYES:  Let's go back on the record.

24          Ms. Alward.

25          MS. ALWARD:  Chairman, Commissioners, during the
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1 short break, I -- Mr. Hains and I met with counsel for

2 the Company and the intervenors who are here today, and

3 we've come up with some proposed language that I would

4 like to offer to Commissioner Kennedy and to the rest of

5 the Commissioners, and it is changing the phrasing

6 somewhat, and I don't have a typed version, so let me

7 read it, but I think it keeps the spirit of what

8 Commissioner Kennedy wanted and yet provides for some

9 interweaving of the comments of the other commissioners.

10 So here it goes.

11          Applicant will create a voluntary citizens

12 advisory council to assist in neighborhood and regional

13 transmission planning related to this project.  That is

14 all the language you already talked about, and instead

15 of a period after "project," we are going to try this

16 language.  By providing notice to all parties and

17 members of the public who provided comment on this

18 project.  The notice shall provide information

19 concerning the establishment of the citizens advisory

20 council and the date, time, location and agenda of the

21 council's commercial meeting.  The notice shall be

22 docketed and sent to all parties and members of the

23 public who made comment on this project within 180 days

24 of the effective date of this decision.  Within 60 days

25 after the initial meeting of the citizens advisory
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1 council, Applicant will file in this docket an update on

2 the status of the group.

3          COM. KENNEDY:  Madam Chairman, I move the verbal

4 amendment read by Mrs. Alward.

5          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  The verbal amendment read

6 into the record by Ms. Alward has been moved.  If there

7 are no other questions about it, it strikes me as being

8 what Commissioner Kennedy was seeking and some of us

9 also discussed.  So all of those in favor say aye.

10          COM. STUMP:  Aye.

11          COM. KENNEDY:  Aye.

12          COM. PIERCE:  Aye.

13          COM. NEWMAN:  Aye.

14          CHMN. MAYES:  Opposed.

15          Okay.

16          COM. KENNEDY:  Madam Chairman, I move Kennedy

17 Amendment Number 1 as amended.

18          CHMN. MAYES:  Okay.  Kennedy Amendment as

19 amended has been moved.  Madam Secretary, please call

20 the role.

21          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Commissioner Kennedy.

22          MS. KENNEDY:  Aye.

23          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Commissioner Stump.

24          COM. STUMP:  Aye.

25          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Commissioner Newman.
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1          COM. NEWMAN:  Yes, I just wanted to congratulate

2 Commissioner Kennedy on this amendment.  I think it is

3 an important precedent, and I look forward to future

4 discussions on advisory councils, but I'm very, very

5 happy this passed today.  I think this was a good case

6 to at least start the experiment, and a lot of things

7 need to be worked out in workshops or however we

8 proceed, but I wanted to congratulate senator --

9 Commissioner Kennedy.  I vote aye.  I vote aye.  I vote

10 aye.

11          CHMN. MAYES:  You don't get three votes.

12          COM. PIERCE:  If I could, just for a moment, I'm

13 still concerned about how technically, because I know

14 the financial part is important to Ms. Webb in taking

15 care of some of these expenses, and I look forward to

16 seeing how, especially if we take this up as a

17 Commission, how to resolve this, because we don't

18 want -- I, for one, don't want to create added expense

19 of ratepayers.  That is where this is going to end up,

20 but I want to see increased participation if that is

21 possible.  I think that that aligns with the Company,

22 too, from what I heard.

23          I was very happy to participate in the

24 give-and-take of this.  I've been the subject of

25 criticism in the past for doing -- for being the one
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1 with the amendment that had to have that much work, and

2 so I would encourage my fellow commissioners who have

3 maybe frowned on making adjustments like this on the fly

4 to just fly with me next time.  I vote aye.

5          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Madam Chair Mayes.

6          CHMN. MAYES:  Aye.

7          I heard five ayes, zero nays.  We passed the

8 Kennedy amendment.  I think that is all we had.

9          COM. PIERCE:  Madam Chair, I move Agenda Item

10 U20 as amended.

11          CHMN. MAYES:  U20 as amended has been moved.

12 Without further discussion or concerns, we will go ahead

13 and have the secretary call the role.

14          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Commissioner Kennedy.

15          COM. KENNEDY:  Aye.

16          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Commissioner Stump.

17          COM. STUMP:  Aye.

18          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Commissioner Newman.

19          COM. NEWMAN:  I just wanted to thank the Siting

20 Committee for its good work, and it was a pleasure to

21 see Mr. Eberhart.  I have not seen him for a very long

22 time, since we served in the legislature.  I'm glad he

23 attended.  His attendance help immeasurably in the last

24 two days, and I invite him to, if he could make it

25 through his engineering practice, to attend more
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1 meetings.  It is very helpful.  And to Mr. Magruder and

2 Ms. Webb and to the Company.  I think that all in all,

3 like I said before, we are all in this together, and in

4 general, this has been a very good day for Santa Cruz

5 County, and I vote yes.

6          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Commissioner Pierce.

7          COM. PIERCE:  I would just like to take a moment

8 and, really, I do appreciate, and any time I can let the

9 Line Siting Committee know their work is invaluable, and

10 just as I got -- when I was in the legislature, I

11 realized my perfect bill was sometimes going to be

12 amended.  I came to accept the fact that you -- that

13 things can be made better, and it is not just in my eyes

14 that it is important, because I look at this, and I

15 appreciate that process and the process of the public,

16 our friends seems like we are members of the family, as

17 much as we are dealing with some of these issues that

18 affect the community in southern, southeastern Arizona,

19 and I appreciate your involvement and the opportunity we

20 get to really discuss community issues and these type of

21 issues that impact communities.  So thank you for your

22 hard work and thank you for the financial investment

23 that you and Marshall make, and pass that along to him.

24 And, again, with the Company, I appreciate your

25 flexibility to look at where the Commission wants to be
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1 headed and help us with, like, the amendment we just

2 did.  I appreciate it, and I vote aye.

3          MADAM SECRETARY BERNAL:  Madam Chair Mayes.

4          CHMN. MAYES:  Well, I think it is appropriate to

5 reflect back about what this power line is all about,

6 which is restoring at least some degree of reliability

7 to Santa Cruz County, which has experienced serious

8 problems with outages.

9          And while most of the discussion on the bench

10 has centered around some of the environmental concerns

11 related with the very small portion of the line, the

12 line itself is critically needed to serve southern

13 Arizona and was not -- and was something that wasn't

14 happening in the past was essentially ordered by this

15 Commission to be done so the people of Santa Cruz County

16 could have reliable power on a regular basis.  So I

17 appreciate the efforts of the Siting Committee.  It

18 turned into a longer hearing, I guess, than it was

19 anticipated, but I guess sometimes that happens.  I

20 appreciate Ms. Webb's participation and Marshall

21 Magruder's participation, and, of course, all the other

22 parties involved.  So for those reasons, I vote aye.

23          By your vote of five ayes and zero nays, you

24 have passed and approved Case Number 144.

25          And we are adjourned, and what I thought we
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1 would do, Colleagues, is take an hour lunch break and

2 come back to staff meeting at 2 o'clock.

3          Thank you very much.

4          (The proceedings concluded at 12:52 p.m.)
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